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Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year 

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank 
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844(c)(1)(A)); sections 8(a) 
and 13(a) of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 3106(a) 
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1), 25, and 25A of the Federal 
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec­
tions 113,165,312,618, and 809 of the Dodd-FrankAct(12 U.S.C. 
§§ 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468(b)(1)). Return to the 
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of 
copies specified. 

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In the event 
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is 
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must 
sign the report. If the holding company is an ESOPIESOT formed as 
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General Instructions for the 
authorized individual who must sign the report. 
1, Jeffrey F. Turner 

Name of the Holding Company Director and Official 

Chairman of the Board f Delmar Bancorp 
Title of the Holding Company Director and Official 

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including 
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre­
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal 
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this 
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this 
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies 
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or 
object to public release of information regarding that individual. 
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for 
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"R egarding Availability of lnfi rmation," 12 C.F.R. Part 261, 

at the eporter fil1!i individual nsent to public release of all 
details in the ~ rt cone t individual. 

For holding companies nQ1 registered with the SEC­
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders: 

D is included with the FR Y-6 report 

D will be sent under separate cover 
D is not prepared 

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only 

RSSDID _______________ _ 

C.I. --------

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa­
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter­
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by 
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require­
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga­
nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 
211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail 
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon­
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond 
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid 
0MB control number. 

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end): 

December 31, 2019 
Month I Day I Year 

NIA 
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code) 

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address 

Delmar Bancorp 
Legal ntle of Holding Company 

2245 Northwood Drive 
{Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street I P.O. Box 

Salisbury MD 21801 -------
City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed: 

Betsy Eicher "S-'V-'-P_/C"-'A-'-0"-------
Name Title 

410-548-1722 X18305 
Area Code I Phone Number/ Extension 

410-548-7895 
Area Code/ FAX Number 

beicher@bankofdelmarva.com 
E-mail Address 

www.bankofdelmarva.com 
Address {URL) for the Holding Company's web page 

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion of ~ 
this report submission?. ~ 
In accordance with the General Instructions for this report 
(check only one), 

1. a letter justifying this request is being provided along 
with the report .. .......... □ 

2. a letter justifying this request has been provided separately ... D 
NOTE: Information for which confidential treatment is being requested 

must be provided separately and labeled 
as "confidential." 

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.50 hours per response, including time to gather and 
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets. NW. v\'ashington, QC 20551. and to the 
Office of Management and Budget. Papetwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), v\'ashington, DC 20503. 12/2019 
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For Use By Tiered Holding Companies

Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies 
below.

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                     State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                     State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                     State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                     State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                      State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                      State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City                                                      State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

12/2012
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Report Item 2a: Organization Chart

410 William Street LLC Bear Holdings Inc Johnson Mortgage Company LLC

No LEI No LEI No LEI

Fredericksburg, VA Fredericksburg, VA Newport News, VA

Virginia Partners Bank owns 100% Virginia Partners Bank owns 100% Virginia Partners Bank owns 51%

State of Incorporation - VA State of Incorporation - VA State of Incorporation - VA

Managing Member Limited PartnerManaging Member 

Delmarva Real Estate Holdings LLC

No LEI

Salisbury, Maryland

The Bank of Delmarva Owns 100%

State of Incorporation - MD

549300T77W6SEYOH0U64

Seaford, Delaware

Delmar Bancorp Owns 100%

State of Incorporation - DE

Delmar Bancorp

No LEI

Salisbury, Maryland

State of Incorporation - MD

The Bank of Delmarva Virginia Partners Bank

No LEI

Fredericksburg, Virginia

Delmar Bancorp Owns 100%

State of Incorporation - VA



Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County Country FDIC UNINUM* Office Number* Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* Comments

OK Full Service (Head Office) 885225 BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   910 NORMAN ESKRIDGE HIGHWAY                                                                         SEAFORD                  DE 19973     SUSSEX                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 664411 MAIN AND CLAYTON BRANCH                                                                                                 28280 CLAYTON STREET                                                                                DAGSBORO                 DE 19939     SUSSEX                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 852816 DELAWARE AVENUE AND MARKET STREET BRANCH                                                                                200 EAST MARKET STREET                                                                              LAUREL                   DE 19956     SUSSEX                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 3283233 REHOBOTH BRANCH                                                                                                         18572 COASTAL HIGHWAY                                                                               REHOBOTH BEACH           DE 19971     SUSSEX                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 3877995 NEW DELMAR BRANCH                                                                                                       9550 OCEAN HIGHWAY                                                                                  DELMAR                   MD 21875     WICOMICO                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 2944359 OCEAN CITY BRANCH                                                                                                       12505 COASTAL HIGHWAY                                                                               OCEAN CITY               MD 21842     WORCESTER                               UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 5191677 WEST OCEAN CITY BRANCH                                                                                                  12720 OCEAN GATEWAY, UNIT 4                                                                         OCEAN CITY               MD 21842     WORCESTER                               UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 2431699 2727 NORTH SALISBURY BRANCH                                                                                             2727 NORTH SALISBURY BOULEVARD                                                                      SALISBURY                MD 21801     WICOMICO                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 1169070 921 EASTERN SHORE BRANCH                                                                                                921 EASTERN SHORE DRIVE                                                                             SALISBURY                MD 21804     WICOMICO                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 886820 BEAGLIN PARK DRIVE BRANCH                                                                                               241 BEAGLIN PARK DRIVE                                                                              SALISBURY                MD 21804     WICOMICO                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 2063876 PECAN SQUARE BRANCH                                                                                                     1206 NANTICOKE ROAD                                                                                 SALISBURY                MD 21801     WICOMICO                                UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 3372276 CHERRY HILL BRANCH                                                                                                      2099 ROUTE 70 EAST                                                                                  CHERRY HILL              NJ 08003     CAMDEN                                  UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 3205253 EVESHAM BRANCH                                                                                                          145 NORTH MAPLE AVENUE                                                                              MARLTON                  NJ 08053     BURLINGTON                              UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service 3312311 MOORESTOWN BRANCH                                                                                                       227 WEST CAMDEN AVENUE                                                                              MOORESTOWN               NJ 08057     BURLINGTON                              UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                                                                   885225

OK Full Service (Head Office) 3688623 VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK                                                                                                  410 WILLIAM STREET                                                                                  FREDERICKSBURG           VA 22401     FREDERICKSBURG CITY                     UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK                                                                                                  3688623

OK Full Service 4848367 LA PLATA BRANCH                                                                                                         115 E CHARLES STREET                                                                                LA PLATA                 MD 20646     CHARLES                                 UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK                                                                                                  3688623

OK Full Service 4257482 COWAN BRANCH                                                                                                            2521 COWAN BOULEVARD                                                                                FREDERICKSBURG           VA 22401     FREDERICKSBURG CITY                     UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK                                                                                                  3688623

OK Full Service 3832109 SALEM CHURCH BRANCH                                                                                                     4210 PLANK RD                                                                                       FREDERICKSBURG           VA 22407     SPOTSYLVANIA                            UNITED STATES                           Not Required Not Required VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK                                                                                                  3688623



 Annual Report of Bank Holding Companies – FR Y-6 
 

Report Item 3: Shareholders 
 
 
Part 1: 
 
 
The following persons were known by the Bank to own beneficially, directly or indirectly, 
more than 5% of the common stock of Delmar Bancorp.   
 
   Kenneth R. Lehman 
   Arlington, Virginia, USA 
   USA 
   7,385,207 shares 42% 
 

CEDE & Company (holds certificate for shareholders in street 
name) 

   New York, NY, USA 
   USA 
   6,692,479 shares 38% 
 
 
Part 2: 
 
None 
 
    
    
    



Report Item 4:  Directors and Officers

(1) Name, (2) Principal Occupation (3a) Title & Position (4a) Percentage (4b) Percentage 4(C.) List Names of Other 
City, State, if other than with with Holding (3b) Title & Position (3c) Title & Position of Voting Shares in of Voting Shares in Companies if 25% or more of 

Country Holding Company Company with Subsidiaries with Other Business Holding Company Subsidiaries Voting Securities Held ***
N/A

1 Betsy J. Eicher, Salisbury, 

MD, USA
N/A Chief Accounting Officer, 

Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer, Senior Vice 

President - The Bank of Delmarva

N/A None N/A N/A

2 George P. Snead, 

Fredericksburg, VA, USA
Attorney Director Director - Virginia Partners Bank Member/Partner of Parrish 

Snead Franklin Simpson, 

PLC

<1% N/A Blackacre Investment Group, LLC 

(25%); Ventnor Holdings, LLC (50%); 

Boardwalk Holdings, LLC (50%).   (All 

are real estate holding companies.)

3 J. Adam Sothen, Moseley, 

VA, USA
N/A Chief Financial Officer, Executive 

Officer

Chief Financial Officer, Executive 

Vice President - Virginia Partners 

Bank

N/A None N/A N/A

4 James A. Tamburro, 

Medford, NJ, USA
Attorney in the Law Firm of 

Tamburro Law Office; Associate 

for the Commercial and Real 

Estate Divisions of Berkshire 

Hathaway in Marlton, NJ

Director Director - The Bank of Delmarva N/A <1% N/A Tamburro Law Office (100%)

5 Jeffrey F. Turner, Chance, 

MD, USA
N/A Director, Chairman Director - Chairman The Bank of 

Delmarva

Chairman of the Board of 

Castle in the Sand, Inc.     

JFT LLC, Sole Member

<1% N/A JFT LLC (100%)

Delmar Bancorp

Annual Report of Bank Holding Companies - FR Y-6



6 John A. Janney, 

Fredericksburg, VA, USA
John Janney Builder, Inc. Director Director, Chairman of the Board - 

Virginia Partners Bank

Owner 1% N/A John Janney Builder, Inc. (100%)

7 John W. Breda, Delmar, MD, 

USA
N/A Director, President, Chief 

Operating Officer

Director, President, Chief Executive 

Officer - The Bank of Delmarva

N/A <1% N/A N/A

8 Kenneth R. Lehman, Fort 

Lauderdale, FL, USA
Private investor and former 

banking and securities 

attorney

Director Director - The Bank of Delmarva, 

Virginia Partners Bank

N/A 42% N/A Heritage Souteast Bancorporation 

(42%); Marine Bancorp of Florida 

(44%); ABB Financial Group (51%); 

Village Bank & Trust Financial Corp 

(51%); Sevier County Bancshares 

(41%); BVC Capital, LLC (100%)

9 Lloyd B. Harrison III, 

Fredericksburg, VA, USA
N/A Director, Chief Executive Officer Director, President, Chief Executive 

Officer - Virginia Partners Bank

Johnson Mortgage 

Company, Director; 410 

William Street, LLC, Director, 

President & Secretary; Bear 

Holdings, Inc., Director and 

President

1% N/A N/A

10 Mark L. Granger, Salisbury, 

MD, USA
Certified Public Accountant 

with Granger & Magee, P.A.

Director Director - The Bank of Delmarva President of Granger & 

Magee, P.A.

<1% N/A Granger & Magee, P.A. (50%)

11 Mona D. Albertine, 

Fredericksburg, VA, USA
Owner, Jabberwocky 

Bookstore

Director Director - Virginia Partners Bank President of Jabberwocky 

Bookstore

<1% N/A Jabberwocky Bookstore (50%)

12 Robert C. Wheatley, Laurel, 

DE, USA
Real Estate Sales Director Director - The Bank of Delmarva Associate Broker at KW 

Commercial,  Managing 

member of The W hayland 

Group, LLC, and member of 

The Porvenir Group, LLC

<1% N/A 100% interest in The W hayland 

Group, LLC, 33.33% interest in The 

Provenir Group, LLC
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At yeorend: 

Total assets 
loons receivable, net 
Investment securities 
Federal funds sold 
Demand and NOW deposits 
Savings and time deposits 
Stockholders' equity 

For the year: 

Total income 
Tota l expenses 
Net income (loss) 
Basic earnings per shore 
Basic earnings per shore. 

excluding intangibles 

Key ra tios: 

Yield on earning assets 
Net interest income 
Return on overage assets 
Return on overage equity 

DELMAR BANCORP 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

2019 

$ 1,252,670,001 
986,683,661 
106,256, 187 
31,230,203 

338,577.955 
668,203,629 
130,876,779 

43,295,545 
37,410,673 

5,884,872 
0.54 

0.562 

5.06% 
31,101 ,720 

0.70% 
7.22% 

Average equity to overage assets 9.75% 

Tier I risk-based capitol Delmarva 11.57% 
Tier I risk-based capitol Partners 12.41% 
Total risk-based capitol Delmarva 12.75% 
Total risk-based capitol Partners 12.47% 
Leverage capitol ratio Delmarva 9.11% 
Leverage capitol ratio Partners 10.36% 
(See No te 15) 

Number of branch offices 18 
Loon production offices 2 
Number of administrative offices 3 
Number of employees 215 

2018 

$ 739,415,724 
625,513,347 
51 ,300,284 

1,254,413 
239,956,769 
374,968,578 

65,988,052 

36,693,223 
31,210,485 

5,482,738 
0.566 

0.598 

4.96% 
27,814,071 

0.84% 
9.53% 
8.84% 

10.49% 
10.49% 
11 .68% 
11.68% 
8.74% 
8.74% 

14 

2 
161 
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March 25, 2020 

Dear Shareholders: 

First, in recognition of the unparalleled emergency brought on by  

Covid-19, we will be holding a virtual annual shareholder meeting 

on April 30, 2020. The proxy has complete details on how to 

participate. 

As noted in last year’s shareholder letter, we had reached 

agreement to acquire Virginia Partners Bank. We are delighted to 

report that this acquisition was completed successfully in 

November, 2019. 

We believe the combination of The Bank of Delmarva and 

Virginia Partners Bank, operating as separately chartered 

commercial banks, will provide benefits from increased 

efficiencies and economies of scale.  Further, the combined 

company should have better access to capital markets which will 

provide capital for growth and enhance shareholder value and 

liquidity.  Moreover, we have experienced improved earnings, 

increased loan balances, a stable core deposit base, a strong 

capital position, and exceptional credit quality. The power of the 

combination of the two banks under the umbrella of Delmar 

Bancorp is illustrated by these year-over-year metrics: 
 

 Assets up 69% to $1.25 Billion;  

 

 Deposits up 64% to $1.01 Billion; 

 

 Investment Securities up 107% to $106 Million; 

 

 Stockholders’ Equity up 98% to $130.9 Million. 

 

It is our intent to find other like-minded banks willing to join this 

“family of banks model” – keeping their brands, local boards and 

management, and employees.  In other words, keeping what is 

best about community banking with its rich history, traditions, and 

core values. 

Delmar BANCOR P"' 

2245 Northwood Drive Salisbury, Maryland 21801 (410) 548-1100 
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We recognize that the business of banking has changed and it 

will continue to change as technology and consumer behaviors 

dictate a new course in the industry.  We will continue to adopt 

new technology and tools through collaborative partnerships 

and dynamic innovation. Our commitment to our communities, 

though, remains unchanged. 

 

Finally, we announce the retirement of John Janney as Chairman 

of the Board of Virginia Partners Bank and Vice Chairman of 

Delmar Bancorp.  Mr. Janney was instrumental in founding 

Virginia Partners.  We are fortunate that he will remain active on 

the board of VPB.  John – thank you for your service!  

 

Thank you for your support as shareholders of the bank. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

 
John W. Breda    Lloyd B. Harrison, III 

President & COO   Chief Executive Officer 
 

 

2245 Northwood Drive Salisbury, Maryland 21801 (410) 548-1100 
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EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 
Delmar Bancorp (“Delmar”) is a bank holding company whose primary assets are 

The Bank of Delmarva and Virginia Partners Bank.  The financial statements of 

Delmar Bancorp consolidate the financial statements of Delmar Bancorp, The 

Bank of Delmarva and Virginia Partners Bank.  The financial statements also 

consolidate the subsidiaries of The Bank of Delmarva, including Davie Circle LLC, 

Delmarva Real Estate Holdings LLC, Delmarva BK Holdings LLC, DHB Development 

LLC of which Delmarva holds a 40.55% interest, West Nithsdale Enterprises LLC of 

which Delmarva holds a 10% interest and FBW LLC of which Delmarva holds a 50% 

interest, and the subsidiaries of Virginia Partners Bank, including Bear Holdings Inc, 

Johnson Mortgage Company LLC of which Partners holds a 51% interest, and 410 

William Street LLC.  The discussion and analysis which follows pertains to the 

operation of all the entities during 2019.  

 

Consolidated assets of Delmar Bancorp increased 69.4% to end the year at 

$1,252.7 million, which was an annual increase of $513.3 million.  A significant part 

of this increase was due to the acquisition of Virginia Partners Bank, which 

contributed $454.2 million in assets.  The remaining $59.1 million, or 8.0%, was 

organic growth. 
 

Delmar’s investment portfolio consists of Federal Agency, municipal, mortgage-

backed and equity securities. The investment portfolio was $106.3 million at the 

end of 2019 or an increase of $55.0 million from $51.3 million in 2018.   
 

Delmar’s loan portfolio, net of the Allowance for Credit Losses, was $986.7 million 

at the end of 2019 or an increase of $361.2 million from $625.5 million in 2018. The 

acquisition of Virginia Partners Bank contributed $357.1 million in loan balances.  

The remaining $4.0 million, or 0.6%, was organic growth. 
 

Delmar’s Allowance for Credit Losses was $7.3 million at year end and represents 

0.7% of ending loan balances.  A total of $1.4 million was expensed from 

operations and added to the Allowance in 2019.  Charge-offs of $1.6 million and 

recoveries of $384,000 in addition to the $1.4 million which was expensed from 

operations accounted for the change in the Allowance for 2019.  Management 

believes that the Allowance for Credit Losses is considered adequate based upon 

the nature of Delmar’s loan portfolio, historical loan losses and the credit quality of 

the current loan portfolio as of December 31, 2019, however there can be no 

guarantees that additional charge-offs or additional provisions for nonperforming 

loans will not be required or that currently performing loans will continue to 

perform at their current levels.   
 

The primary source of funding for Delmar’s loan and investment activities comes 

from deposit accounts owned by individuals, corporations, partnerships and other 

entities and from Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings.  Total deposits increased 

by $391.9 million to $1,006.8 million.  The acquisition of Virginia Partners Bank 

contributed approximately $348.6 million in deposit balances.  The remaining 

increase of $43.3 million, or 7.0% was organic growth.  Non-interest bearing 

demand accounts were 26.0% of total deposits and were $261.6 million at the end 

of 2019, an increase of $76.2 million or 41.1% compared to 2018.  Interest bearing 

deposits were $745.2 million at the end of 2019.  NOW accounts, savings accounts, 

money market accounts and certificates of deposit with balances greater than 

$100,000 increased by 95.7% while certificates of deposits with balances less than 

$100,000 increased by 25.6% compared to 2018.   
 

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings provide additional funding for short term and 

long term needs.  Delmar ended 2019 with $48.8 million in long term borrowings at 

the FHLB compared to $43.5 million at December 31, 2018.  Delmar had $48.0 
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million in short term borrowings at the end of 2019, compared to $7.0 million at the 

end of 2018.  
 

Delmar had an additional $7.7 million of long term borrowings from institutions other 

than the Federal Home Loan Bank at the end of 2019. 
  

Total capital at Delmar increased by approximately $64.9 million or 98.3%.  

Adjustments to capital in 2019 include net income of approximately $5.9 million, 

the issuance of common stock to Virginia Partners stockholders of approximately 

$52.2 million and the exercise of warrants in conjunction with the effectiveness of 

the share exchange of approximately $5.3 million.  Delmar and the Banks are 

subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by Federal banking 

agencies.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 

prompt corrective action, Delmar and the Banks must meet specific capital 

adequacy guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, 

and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting 

practices.  The Banks’ capital amounts and classifications are also subject to 

qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and 

other factors.  At December 31, 2019 Delmar and the Banks met all capital 

adequacy requirements to which they are subject and are considered to be “Well 

Capitalized”.  Management’s goal is to maintain capital levels in excess of 

minimum regulatory capital guidelines that are sufficient to support potential 

growth and absorb potential losses.  During each quarter of 2019 Delmar paid a 

dividend to common stock shareholders. 
 

Delmar’s primary source of income is interest income derived from the loan and 

bond portfolios.  Total interest income in 2019 was $39.4 million, an increase of 

approximately $6.2 million from 2018.  Interest income from the loan portfolio was 

$37.0 million at the end of 2019.  Interest income from the bond portfolio was 

approximately $1.5 million, which included approximately $637,000 in income 

exempt from federal taxation. 
 

The primary source of interest expense is interest paid to depositors and for other 

borrowed money.  Interest paid to depositors totaled $6.4 million, an increase of 

approximately $2.6 million from 2018.  Total interest expense in 2019 was $8.3 

million, an increase of approximately $2.9 million from 2018. 
 

Net interest income for 2019 totaled $31.1 million.  This is an increase of 11.8% over 

the prior year’s $27.8 million in net interest income.  The net interest margin in 2019 

was 4.0%, compared to 4.12% in 2018. 
 

Other income includes service charges on deposit products, rental of safe deposit 

boxes, the brokerage of stock and bond products, and gains or losses on the sale 

of assets and securities.  Other income increased approximately $402,000 in 2019.    
 

Operating expenses, including net write downs on other real estate owned of 

approximately $141,000, were $25.1 million in 2019 compared to $22.3 million in 

2018, representing an increase of $2.7 million or 12.3%.  The operating expense to 

average asset ratio of Delmar, excluding any impairment losses, was 3.0% in 2019 

compared to 3.1% in 2018.   
 

Net income was approximately $5.9 million in 2019 compared to net income of 

approximately $5.5 million reported in 2018.  This is an increase of approximately 

$401 thousand.  Net income includes merger related expenses of $1.9 million for 

the year ended December 31, 2019 and $1.6 million for the year ended December 

31, 2018.  Total shares outstanding at year end 2019 were 17,790,181 and at year 

end 2018 were 9,985,321.  The basic earnings per share were $.538 per share in 

2019 compared to $.566 per share in 2018.   
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TGMGO.E 
CERTIFIED PU8llC ACCOUNTANTS 
www.tgmgroupllc.com 

REPORT OF IND EPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTrNG FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and 
Stock.holders of Delmar Bancorp 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audi ted the accompanying consol idated balance sheets of De lmar Bancorp and 
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash nows for each of 
the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes (collectively 
referred to as the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, based on our audit and the 
report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all mate rial 
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 3 I, 2019 and 2018, and the 
resul ts of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended 
Dece mber 31, 2019, in conformity with accoun ting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

We did not audit the financial statements of Virginia Partners Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary, 
which statements reflect total assets and revenues constituting 36 percent and 7 percent, 
respectively, of the related consolidated totals. Those statements were audited by other auditors 
whose report has been furn ished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it re lates to the amounts 
included for Virginia Partners Bank, is based solely on the repoit of the other auditors. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibi lity is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our 
audits. We are a public accounting finn registered with the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (Uni ted States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the 
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable mies and 
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards 
requi re that we plan and perform the aud it to obta in reasonable assurance about whether the 
financia l statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The 
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control 
over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of 
internal control over financial repoiting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effect iveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. 

955 Mt. Hermon Road I Salisbury, MD 21804 I 410-7 42-1 328 I 1-888-546-157 4 
114 Bay Street, Building A I PO Box 627 I Easton, MD 21601 I 410-822-4008 
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Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to 
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits and the report of 
the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1993. 

Salisbury, Maryland 
March 27, 2020 

955 Mt. Hermon Road I Salisbury, MD 2 1804 I 410-7 42-1328 I l -888-546-157 4 
114 Bay Street, Building A I PO Box 627 I Easton, MD 2 160 l I 410-822-4008 
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DELMAR BANCORP 
C01'S0LIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 2019 and 2018 

(Dc.ilh1n i.n lhuus11nds. H«yt pt'r sh11n- •mounts) 

ASSETS 
Cash and due from banks 
lntcrcs.t bearing deposits in other financial ins.tirutions 
Federal funds sold 

Cash nnd cash c,quivalems 
Securities aV'{litable for snlc, a1 fair v.iluc 
Loans held for sale, at fair \'3h,1e 
Loans. less. allownncc for credit l()sscs of $7,304 at December 31, 2019 and $7,06.l at December 
3 1, 20 18 
Accrued in1cn.·1;;;t receivable on loam;. and investment sccuri1ics 
Premises and ,-quipmcnt, at cost. less acc:umul111c:d dcpr<.-c.iutiun 
federal llome Loan Dank ~tock, a1 cost 
Atlantic Central Danken Bank ~ock. at cost 
Other investments 
Deferred la...: asset 
Dank owned life ill5lil'aJlCC 
Other real cs1.11e owned 
Core deposit intangible 
Goodwill 
Other assets 

T ota l assets 
I.IA81tl'l"IE$ 
Deposits: 

Non intt::re.~t bearing demand 
NOW 
Savings and money nlci:rket 
Time. SIO0.OOOor more 
Other·1imc 

Accrued inler(.-st 1:tayablc on deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-lcrm borrowlngs 
Subord inated notes payable 
Other liubilities 

Total Uabilitir ll 
COMMITME:"<i'TS, CONTINGENCIES & SUBSEQUENT EVEi\"T 
STOCKHOLDERS' fQUIT\' 
Common stock, p.ur value $.0 1, authori7.t.-d 20.000,000 shares, i!»u.c..-d and outstanding 17,790.18 1 
as of December 31, 2019 and 9,985..321 as of Oc,cembcr 3 1, 2018 
Surplus 
Retained earn ine,S 
Non<:ontrnlling in1crcs1 in consolidated subsid iaries 
Accurnulatcd olhcr oom1>rehcnsive i1l<:01ne (loss). net of 1ax 

Total StO(kholders' equll}' 
Tota l liabilities and 5toc l.holders' equity 

D,e,c-emtwr31. 
2019 2018 

J6,295 24,347 
27,586 4.093 
31,l.lO 1.254 
95,1 11 29,694 

106,256 51,300 
J,555 

986,684 625,513 
J, 138 2,103 

IJ,705 10,048 
5,180 2.652 

131 131 
2,838 1,537 
.l,lll9 4.829 
7,817 
2,417 3.660 
.l,373 1.069 
9,391 5,237 
9,2.lS 1.643 

1,252,670 739,416 

261,631 185,476 
76,9•7 54.481 

222,975 123.949 
274,387 115.0JO 
1701141 135.990 

1,006,781 614,926 
572 392 

48,000 7,000 
48,830 43,489 

7,749 6,500 
9 861 I 121 

1, 121,793 673,428 

178 100 
87,437 29,470 
41,785 37.149 

7J8 
7J9 (731) 

IJO 877 65,988 
112s21670 739 416 

The Selected Notes to Consolidated Fir\ancial Statements are an iruegral pat1 of these consolidated financial 
slalcmcnts. 



 9 

DEDIAR BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STA TEMl:NTS Of L'iCOM E 

Years Ended December 3 19 2019 and 2018 

{Oolbrs In rhousand!z tXC"tl,!I share data} 2019 2018 
INTEREST INCOME ON: 

Loans, including fees s 36,975 s 31,362 
Investment securities: 
Taxable 850 647 
Exempt from Federal income tax 637 554 

Federal ninds sold 157 114 
Other interest inco,nc 762 496 

39,381 33,173 
INTEREST EXPENSE ON: 

Deposits 6,435 3,790 
Borrowings 1844 I 569 

8 279 5 359 
NET INT EREST INCOME 31, 102 27,814 

Provision for crcdit losses 1,441 1,175 
NET INT EREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES 29,6ti l 26,639 
OTRl:R INCOME: 

Service charges on deposi1 accounts 1, 174 1,317 
Gain on sale of investment sec-urities 98 
(Losses) gains on disposal of other assets (3) 405 
Other income 2,652 1,798 

J 921 3,520 
OTH ER EXPENSES: 

Salaries and employee benefi1s 13,261 10,649 
Premises and equipment 3,713 3,258 
Wri1e down of Maryland Financial bank s1ock 30 
Amonization of core deposit intangible 346 420 
Losses on other real estate owned 141 384 
Other expenses 7 597 7,577 

25,058 22,318 
INCOME BEFORE TAXES ON INCOME 8,524 7,841 
FederJI and stale income taxes 2,63 1 2,359 
NET INCOME 5,893 5,482 
Net income attribu lable to noncontn,lling interest (10) 
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO DED<fAR BA. 'CORP s 5,883 s 5,482 

Earnings per common share 
Basic earnings per share s 0.538 s 0.566 
Dilu1cd $ 0.537 s 0.565 

The Selected Notes to ConsolidalL-d Financial Statements arc an integral pan of these consolida1cd financial 
statements. 
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(l>olh1n In l hOM~»ndi) 

NET INCOM£ 

DELMAR BAl"CORP 
CO/'/SOLIDATED STATEMENTSOF COMPREIIE~SI VE 11\'COME 

Yea rs Ended De<ember31, 2019-nd 2018 

OTII 1::R COM PREIIENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF TAX: 
Unreali.t('(I holding ~ains (lo~scs) on securities availClble for Stile arising during the 
period 

Deferred income tax (liabilities) benefits 
Other comprehensive income ( loss). net of tax 

Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income 
Deferred income tax benefits 
01hcr comprehensive income. net oftox 

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOMF. 

2019 2018 

51893 "'s _..:;s"".4""82=-

2,097 
(556) 

1,541 

(97) 
26 

(71) 
1,470 
7,363 

(650) 
172 

(478) 

(478) 
5,004 

The Sclccccd Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Starcmcnt~ arc an intcgrJI pan of these consolidated financiul 
srn1ements. 
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DELMAR BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATF.D STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITV 

Years Ended December 3 11 2019 and 2018 

Accurnulmcd 
Oth1.-r Total 

Commor, Retained Noncontmlling ComprchcBSivc Stocli:holdcrs' 
(Doll11rs in 1homands. cxc~ e!:,. shan: iun01.m1s) S1ock ~ Eumi.np ~ Jnr;:01n1:(lo!ill) ~ 
Balanocs. December 31. 2017 "' 16.612 ~ (2SJ) ~ 
COMPRl:.1 IIZNSIVE INC01tE 

Nct iBComc S.4>2 S,482 
0 1hcr comprchcnsi\'C i1M;:001c, net of ux: 

Unrealized holding losses on securities a,·aitabk for sale 
.irising dunng th<: period (473) (478) 

TOTAL COMPR£HENSIV~ INCOME --------r.oo:i" 
Cash cJividcnds. S0.095 per share (948) (948) 
Common ~tock issued for stock options exercised ]I JI 
Commoo stock i:ssuod 10 bl\im:holdt-'TS of Liberty (klJ Oank 18 12,781 12,799 
Stock-bar,icd COl'llJ)l'l'L~liOO CXptrl~C l'C~'Qo811i~d in ~ming,-., net 
or cmpk.))-CC lllll obhg111100 )<; 36 

Balonocs. December 31. 2018 100 29,470 
COM PR El IENSIVF. INC01tE 

.l7,149 <7,l)) 65,988 

Nr..'1 income 5JOIJ JO 5Jl93 
Other comprchcnsi~·e i1,coo,c, ne1 o f tii.x; 

Unrealized hold ing gains on SIX'urilics available- for sale 
iirbing dunng the period 1.541 1.541 
Rcd 31!.5itic::1.1 ioo adjusm)Cm fl)r gains indudcd in nL'1 i1k:omc (71) ____ill) 

TOTAL. COMPRl!IIENSIVI! INCOME 7.363 
Cash div idends:. $0.100 llC'f share t l, 193) ( 1,193) 
Minonty intl'ft'St contnbutcd capital ,,. m 
Rccla'-!>iticatioo adjustment for 10$5 on oqu11y scct1rin~ l\.":lli7..cd 
during 1hc period (S.,) (S.,) 
Stock opcion e;\,c.ri;-ises. ~ , so 50 
Value of stock opdons acquired 350 "" Warr.int CX(.'ft'IS(.-8, net • s.rn SJ42 
Common stock i$--.t1od 10 s l\nrcholdc-ro. of Virgi11ia Panncr)J 8,snk 
Stock-based compl'tlS..'llion expense recognized in earning:;. net 

70 52,21 I Sl,281 

of cmplo)'tC hlx obligation 12 ll 
U11lntts. DttrmOCr JI, 2019 5 178 S 87.437 S 41,785 ?J8 $ 139 S IJ0,87? 

The Selected Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcmcnls arc an integral par1 of these consolidated financial 
statements. 
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(Dollars In thousa nds) 

DELMAR BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Yean Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Ne1 income 
Adjustmcnls to rcroncilc nd mcome to net cash providro by Opc"rating scti\'illes: 

Provision f()r credit losses and unfunded commitmcms 
Depm:ialiOll 
Amor1izution and occrt.1ion 
Gain on inve..1mmt s«uritics 
Net gains(loss)on salcsof assc:ts 
Loss oo equity securities 
Gain on sale of loans hdd for sale. originated 
Net losses on o ther real estate O¼ncd. including writc--do,rns 
lncrease in bMlk ow,,ed life insuraoce c-.ish surtendet val11e 
Deferred income tax e.-:penses 
Stock-bi1xd cornpmsation cxpcnsc. net of employee ta;,: obligatioo 
Change!) in 8SSC(S. and liabilities: 

lricrease in loons held fot sale 
Dei..Tdl:sc {inc.'.ffiU(') in accrued interest receivabl~ 
( lnc.rc:isc:) ck-crease in other asscL~ 
Increase in accrued imcrcs1 paY3blc 
ltlCl'\.'aSC (deete:.'l.Se) in 01her liabilities 

Ne• cash provided by opcrnting ac1ivi1ics 
CASH Fl_,OWS PRO,\l l~VESTING ACTIVIT IES: 

Purchases of securi1ies aw1ilable fo..-sale 
i>rocecds from maturities and paydowns of SC(:Uritics available for sale 
Pmcccd$ fmm sales of sccuritic:s available for sale 
Ne• increase ill loaru 
Proceeds f rorn sale of assets 
Cash n,cchrcd acquisiuon 
Purchases of premises and cquipmcn1 
Cash paid to WJ'eholders 
Proceeds from the sales of foreclosed assrts 
Procoeds from sales of Federal Home l oon Bank stock 
Purchase of Federal Horne Loo.n Bank stock 

Net cash provided by(u:scd by) im·C"Sting ac1ivitics 
CASH FLOWS FRO.\I FINAl'\C l.'.\"G ACTIVIT IES : 

lncrease (decrease) in (lemand, NOW. money mari:ec, Md s.·wings dcposilS, net 
Cbh roceh•ed for the exerci:se of stock opcions 
Cash rc«ived for the exa-cise or warrants 
lr1cre1~c in time deposits, ncr 
rnx:eeds from borrowings to fwKI acquisition of Liberly Gell Oank. net of loan costs 
(Dec'.:rt-.1se) increase in other borrowings. net 
Net increase in minori1y interest ooniributed capital 
(A.--crc.1sc in finar.cc lease liability 
Dividends paid 

Net cash provided by financing .acth·ities 
Net locrt:1se (decre2:st) In CIIISh 1111d u.sh t quh•,ilt 11t.s 
Cuh and cinh tqUh'alrnts, bt't innin1;t 
Cub tmd ush t-quh·,.rtnts, t nding 
S upph:mcntary cash flow infom1ation: 

llllCf'eil paid 
LncCNne taxes paid 
Trnal appreciation (dcprcc.iatioo} on 5C'Curities u·ailablc foc sale 

SUPPLllMENTARY NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
I-air value of assc1s acq11ircd. net of cash and cash equiva.lems 
Fair va.luc ofli3bilitics ~ med. nct orca$h and ca.,;h cquivalcm::; 
Vah1e of sh.ires provided 10 stockholders 
Value ofs10..::k Options assumtd in acquisition 
l oans con\'encd to other real estate oY..-ncd 

Ye-ar roded 
D«tmbtr 31 

2019 2018 

S.883 5.482 

l ,,H I 1, 175 
1,197 925 

314 640 
(107) 

s (37S) 
9 

(205) 
153 385 
(26) 

1,820 l.49~ 
22 36 

(1,383) 
120 (147) 

(2.'192) 682 
145 127 

I 411 (1,514) 
7 807 8910 

(30.717) 
42,988 

(9,093) 
8.601 
2,.5q1 

(7,395) 
16 

(42,693) 
973 

6,743 I L831 
(1,248) (1,451) 

(2) (4,471) 
1.lOO 9:14 

810 979 
(924) 

II 511 
(1,153) 

{32,952) 

9.642 (9,979) 
50 31 

s •. H2 
33,659 21,207 

4,450 
(1,394) 6.341 

10 
(17) 

(1.193) (896) 
46,099 21,154 
65,417 (2,888) 
29.694 32.582 
9S.111 29,694 

8,134 5,197 
1.297 1,n1 
1.m (650) 

447...124 139.701 
404.959 139.500 
52.282 12,798 

350 
209 379 

The Selected Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an inregral pan of these consolidated financial 
SU\tcments. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA L STATEMENTS 

Note I. Nature of Business and Its Significant Accounting Policies 

Delmar Bancorp (1he Company) is a multi-bank holding company wi1h rwo subsidiaries (1he"Subsidiaries"), 
The Bank of Delmarva ("Delmarva''), a commercial bank operating in Wicomico and Worcester counties in Maryland, 
Sussex County in De laware, and Camden and Burlington counties in New Jersey, and Virginia Panncrs Bank 
( .. Partners''). a commercial bank hcadquancrcd in Fredericksburg. Virginia. The Subsidiaries provide financial services 
to individua l and corporate customers, and arc subjcc1 to competition from other financial ins titut ions . The Subsid iaries 
arc. also subjec110 the regulations of certain Federal and state agendes and undergoes periodic examinations by 1hose 
regulatory aulhoritics. The accounting policies or the Subsidiaries conform to generally accepted accounting principles 
and practices within the banking industry. 

Significant accounting policies not disclosed e lsewhere in the consolida ted financial s tatements are as follows: 

Principle!-i c, f C o nsolidation: 

T he consolidated financ ial statements inc lude the accounts o f Delmar Bancorp; its wholly O\\'Tted subs idiaries, 
T he Bank of Delmarva and Virginia Partners Bank, along wilh their consolida ted subs idiaries: Delmarva Real Esta1e 
Holdings, LLC., a wholly owned subsidiary of Delmarva, whic h is a real estate holding company; Davie Circle. LLC, a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Delmarva, which is a real estale holding company; Delmarva BK Holdings. LLC, a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Delmarva, which is a real estate holding company; DH B De\1e lopmcnt, LLC, of which Delmarva 
holds a 40.55% interest. and is a real estate holding company; West Nithsdale Enterprises, LLC. of which Delmarva 
holds a 10% interes1. and is a real eslate holding company: FBW, LLC. o f wh ich Delmarva ho lds 50% interest. and is 
a lso a real estate holding company~ Bear Holdings. Inc. a wholly owned subsid iary o f Partners* and is a real estate 
holding company; Johnson Mortgage Company. LLC. of which Partners owns 5 1¾ interest , nnd is a rcsidcntirtlmortgagc 
company; and 4 10 William S1-reet, LLC, a wholly owned subs idiary o f Par1ners, and which holds investment property. 
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been climina1cd. 

Use or Estimates: 

T he preparation of consolida1ed financial state me nts in conformity with accounting princ iples generally 
accepted within the Uni1ed S1a1es o f America requires management 10 make estimates and assumptions 1hat affect 1he 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and linbilities a t the date of the consolidntcd 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 1hc reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates, 

Se<:ur itics A \1ai,lablc for Sale: 

Marketable debt and equi1y securities 1101 classi fied as held to maturity are classified as available for sale. 
Sc..-curitics available for sale a rc acquired as part o f the Subsidiaries's asset/liability management strategy and may be sold 
in response to changes in inlcrest rates, loan demand, changes in prepayment risk, and other factors. Securities available 
for sale arc carried at fnil' value as detennined by quoted market prices. Unrealized gains or losses based on 1he 
difference between amortized cost and foir value arc reported in other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax. 
Realized gains and losses, us ing 1he specific identificalion method, arc included as a separate eomponcnl of other income 
(expense) and. when applicable. are reponed as a reclassification adjustment, net of tax. in other comprehensive income. 
Premiums a nd discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest me thod over the period to maturity. 
Addi1ionally. declines in 1he fair value of individual inveslment securities below their cosl 1hat are other than lempornry 
are reflected as realized losses in the consolidated s tatcmenls of income. 

Impairment may rcsull from c redit dctcrlora1ion of the issuer or collate.ml underlying the scurity. In performing 
an assessment ofrecove-rabili1y, all re levant information is considered, including the length o f time and cxlcnt to which 
fair value has been less than the amortized cost basis, the cause of the price decline, credi1 performance, of the issuer and 
underlying c<.1llateral, and recove.ries or further declines in fair value subsequent to the ba l:mce sheet date. 
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For debt securities, the Company measures and recognizes other-than-temporary ("OTII") losses lhrough 
earnings if (I) the Company has the intent to sell the security or (2) it is more likely than not tha1 the Company will be 
required co sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. In these circumstances. the impairment loss is 
equal to the full d ifference belween the amortized cost basis and the fair value of the security. For securities that arc 
considered 01her-than-1cmporarily-impaircd that the Company has 1he intent and ability 10 hold in an unrealized loss 
position, the OTTI \\Titc-down is scpamtcd into an amount representing the c redit loss, which is recognized in earnings, 
and the amount related to other factors, which is recognized as a componem of other comprehensive income ("OCI"), 

For equity securities, the Company recognizes OTT! losses through earnings. if the Company intends 10 sell the 
securiry. The Company also considers other relevant factors. i.ncluding its intent and ability to retain the security for a 
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recover in market value. and whether evidence exists to support a 
realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value. Any impairement loss on an equity security is equal 10 tbe 
full difference between the amortized cost basis and the fair value of the security. 

Equity Securities: 

Equity securities with readily determinable fair valuc-s arc carried a1 fair value, with changes in fai r value 
reported in net inconlC. Any equity securities without readily detcm1inable fair valuc-s are carried at cost, minus 
impa irment~ if any, plus o r minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for identical or 
similar investments, The entirety of any impainnent on equity securilies is recognized in camings. 

Other Securities: 

Fcderal l lorne Loan Bank ("FHLB"). A1lan1ic Central Bonkers Bank ("'ACBB"), Community Bankers Bank 
("CBB") and Maryland Financial Bank ("'MFB'") arc equi1y in1creS1s in lhc FHLB, ACBB, and MFB respce1ively. These 
securities do 1101 have a readily determinable fair value for purposes of ASC 320-10 lnvestments-Dcb1s and Equity 
Securi1ies because the ir ownerSbip is restric1cd and they lack an active markeL As there is no rer1dily de1crminable fa ir 
value for these securities. they are carried a t cost less any OTII. Other lnveslmems consists ofan equity ownership of 
Solomon Hess SBA Loan Fund LLC which 1hc value is adjusted for its pronua share of assets in 1he Fund and 
inveslmetn in t he stock of the Federal Reserve Bank. 

Bank Owned Life Insurance: 

The Company has purchase.d life insurance. policies on certain key executives. Bank owned life insurance is 
recorded al the amount that can be realized tmder 1he insurance contrac1 al the balance sheet date, which is lhc cash 
surrender value adjusted for other changes or amounts due chat are probably at settlement. 

Loans and the Allowance for Credit Losses: 

Loans are generally carried at the amount of unpaid principal, adjusted for uneamed loan fees, which are 
amortized over the term of the loan using the effective interest rate method. Interest on loans is accrued based on the 
princ ipal amounts outstand ing. It is the Subsidiaries's policy to discontinue the accrual of inlcrest when a loan is 
specifically determfoed to be impaired or when principal or interest is delinquent for ninety days or more. When a loan is 
placed on nonaccrual s tarus. a ll inte resl previously accrued but nor collected is reversed against currenl period interest 
income. l nlerest income generally is not recognized on specific impaired loans unless the likelihood of further loss is 
remote. Ca."h collections on such loans are applied~ reductions oflhc loan principal balance and no inte rest income is 
recognized on lhose loans until the principal balance has been collected. Interest income on other nonaccrual loans is 
recognized only 10 the extent of interest pttyments received. The canying value of impaired loans is based on the present 
value of the loan's expected future cash flows or. ahema1ively. 1he observable marker price of the loan or the fair value 
of lhe collalcral. 
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The allowance for loan losses is mainta ined at a level believed adequate by management to absorb probable 
losses inherem in the loan por1folio and is ba.st."d on the size and current risk characteristics of the loan ponfolio. an 
a.sscssmcnt o f individual problem loans and actual loss experience, the value of the underlying collatcrnl, and current 
economic events in specific industries and geographical areas, includ ing unemployment levels, and other pertinent 
fac1ors, including regulatory guidat1ce aod general economic conditioos. De1enuination of the allowance-is inherently 
subjec1ive, as it requires significant es1immes. including 1he amounts and timing on historical loss experience. and 
consideration of current economic trends, a ll of which may be susceptible to significant change. Loan losses are charged 
off against the allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are c redited to the allowance. A provision 
for credit losses is charged to operations based on managemenfs periodic evaluation of the factors previously mentioned, 
as well as other pertinent factorS. Evaluations arc conduc1cd at least monthly and more often if deemed necessary. 

The allowance for credit losses typically consists of an allocated component and an unallocated component. The 
allocated component of the a llowance- for credit losses reflects expected losses resulting from analyses developed 
1hrough specific credit allocations for individual loans and historical loss experience for each loan category. 

The specific credit allocations arc based on regular analyses of all loans over a fixed.dollar amount where lhc 
internal credit rating is at or below a predetermined classification. The historical loan loss e lement is de termined 
statistically usin,g an informal loss migrarfon analysis 1hat c:<amJnes loss experience and tl1c-re tared imernal gradings of 
loans charged off over a current 3 year period. The loss migra1ion analysis is performed quarterly and loss factors arc 
updated re&rularly based on actual experience. The allocaled component of the allowance for credit losses a lso includes 
consideration ofconcenrrations and changes in portfolio mix and volume. 

Any unalloca1ed portion of 1he a llowance reflects manageinent's es1.iinate of probable inherent but undetected 
losses within the portfolio due to uncertainties in economic conditions. delays in obtaining information. including 
unfavorable infonnation about a borrower's financial condition. the difficulty in identifying triggering events that 
correlate perfectly to subsequenl loss rat.es. and risk factors that have not ye1 manifested themselves in loss alJoe-ation 
factors. In add ition, the unallocated allowance includes a component that explicitly accounts for the inherent imprecision 
in loan loss migration models. The historical losses used in the migration ana lysis may not be representative of actual 
unrealized losses inherent in 1be portfolio. It is managemem's iment 10 cor.uinually refine the me1bodology for tbe. 
allov.rance for credit losses in an anempt to directly allocate polential losses in the loan portfolio under ASC Topic 3 l 0 
and minimize the unallocated portion of the al!01A'Bnce for credit losses. 

Loan Charge~off Po licies 

Loans are general ly fully or partially charged down 10 1he fair value of securing collateral when: 

managemeni deems the asse110 be uncollee1ible 

repaymenl is deemed to be made beyond the reasonable 1ime frames 

the asset has been classified as a loss by internal or cxlcmal review 

the borrower has fi led bankruptcy and the loss becomes evident owing to a lac.k of assets 

Acquired Loans 

Loans acquired in connec1ions with business combinations are recorded a11.heir acquisition-date fair value with 
no carry over of related allowance for credit losses. Any allowance for loan loss on these pools reflect only losses 
incmTed after 1he acquisition (meaning the pre.sent value of all cash flows expected at acquisition that ultimately are nol 
to be received). Detem1j11ing the fair value of the acquired loans involves estimating the principal and interest cash flows 
expected to be collec1ed on the loans and discounting those cash flows at a market rate of interest. Management 
conside rs a numbe.r of factors in evaluating the acquisi1ion-date fair value including the remaining life of the acquired 
loans. delinquency status. estimated prepayments, payment options and other loan fean1res, internal risk grade. cs1imated 
value of the underlying collate ral and interest ra1e environment. 
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Acquired loans that met the criteria for nonaccrual of interest prior to 1he acquisition may be considered 
performing upon acquisition, regardless of whether the customer is contractually de linquent, if,\ie can reasonably 
estimate the timing and amount of the expected cash flows on such loans and ifwe expeet to ful ly collec1 the new 
carrying value o f 1he loans. including the impact of any accretable yield. 

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit qua lity are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards 
Codification ("'ASC") 310-30. loans and Debi Securi1ies Acquired with Dc,eriorated Credi, Qua Iii)' (ASC 310-30) if, at 
acquisition, the loans have evidence o f credit quality deterioration since origination and it is probable that all 
contractually required payments "rill not be collected. At acquisition, the Company considers several foe.tors as indicator 
that a.n acquired loan has evidence o f deterioration in credit quality. These factors include; loans 90 days or more past 
due, loans with an internal risk grade of subs tandard or below, loans classified as non-accrual by the acquired institution, 
and loans that have been previously modified in a troubled debt restrucruring. 

Under 1he ASC 3 10-30 model, the excess of cash nows expec1ed 10 be collected at acquisi1ion over recorded 
fair va lue is referred to as the accretable yield and is the interest component of expected cash flow. The accretab le yield 
is recognized into income over the remaining life of the loan if the timing and/or amount of cash flows expected to be 
collected can be reasonable estimmed (the accre1ion method), If 1he timing or amount of cash flows ex peeled 10 be 
collected cannot be reasonab ly estimated, the cost re.covery method of income recognition is used. The. difference 
be1ween the loan's to1al scheduled principal and interest payment over all cash flows expected to be collected at 
acquis ition. considering the impact of prepayments, is referred to as the non~accrctablc diffcre.ncc. The non-accrctablc 
difference represents contractually required principal and interest payments which rhe Company does not ex peel to 
collect. 

Over the life of the loan, management continuc.s to estimate cash flows expected to be collected. Decreases in 
expected cash flows are recognjzed as impai.rmeats tllfOugh a charge to the provision for loan losses resulting in an 
increase in the allowance for loan losses. Subsequenl improvements in ca.sh flows result in firsl, reversal of exist ing 
valuation allowance$ recognized subsequent to acqui$ition, if any, and next. an increase in the amount of accretable yield 
to be subsequently recognized as interest income on a prospective basis over the loan's remaining life. 

Acquired loans that were nol individually determined to be purchased \\rith deteriorated credit qua lity arc 
accounted for in accordance with ASC 3 10-20, Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (ASC 310-20), whereby the 
premium or discount derived from the fair market value adjustment. on a loan-by-loan or pooled basis. is recognized info 
interest income on a level yield basis over the remaining expected life o f the loan or pool. 

Troubled Debt Restructurings 

A loan is accoun1ed for and reponed as a troubled deb1 res1rncturing ("TOR") when, for economic or legal 
reasons, we grant a concession to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty that \\/C would not otherwise conside r. 
Management s trives ro identify borrowers in financial d iffkulry e.arly a11d works with them to modify to more affordable 
terrm before their loan reaches nonaccrual s tatus. These modified terms may include rate reductions~ principal 
forgiveness. payment forbearance and other actions intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or 
repossession of the collateral. A restrucn1ring that results in only an insiginficam delay in payment is not considered a 
conccs.sion. A delay may be considered insignificant if the payments subject to the delay a rc insignificant relative to the 
unpaid plincipal or collateral value a nd the contractual amoum due, or the delay in t iming of the restructured payment 
period is insignificant relative to the frequency of the payments. the debt•s original contracrual maturiry or original 
expected duration. 

TDRs are designared as impaired because interest and principa l payments will oot be re.ceived in accordance 
with the original contract tenns. TD Rs that are perfonning and on accrual s tatus as of the date of lhe modi lica1ion 
remain o n accrual s tarus. TDRs. that are nonperforming as of the date of n1Qdific.ation generally remain as nonaccmal 
until the prospect of future payments in accordance with tbe modified loan agreement is reasonabley assured. generally 
demonstrated when 1he borrower maintains compliance with the restructured 1cnns for a prcdetennlncd period, normally 
at leasl s ix months. TDRs with temporary below-marke t concessions remain designaled as a TOR and impaired 
regardless of the accnrnl or performanc.e s tarus until the loan is paid off. However. if the TOR loan has been modified in 
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a subsequesnt restrucrure with market tcnns and 1he borrower is not currcruly experiencing financial d ifficulty, then the 
loan may be no longer designated as a TDR. 

Loans Held for Sale: 

These loans consist of loans made through Partners· majoriry owned subsidiary Johnson Mortgage C.Ompany. 
LLC ("IMC"), 

JMC is engaged in the mortgage brokerage business in which JMC originates. closes. and immediately sells 
mortgage loans and related servicing rights to permanent investors in the secondary market JMC has ,vriuen 
commitments from SC\'CrJ\ pcnnanent investors (large financial institu1ions) and only closes loans thal meet the lending 
requirements of the permanent investors. Loans arc made in connection with the purchase or refinancing of existing and 
new one-to-four family residences primarily in southcrcastcm and nonhcm Virginia. Loans a.re initially funded 
primarily by JMC's lines of credit. With the concurrent sale and delivery of mortgage loans to the permanent im•estors, 
J MC records receiveables for mongage loans sold and recognizes the related gains and losses on such sales. The 
receivables for mortgage loans sold arc usually satisfied \Vithin 30 days of salc1 whereupon the related borro\Vings on lhe 
lines of credit are repaid. Because of the short holding period. these loans are carried at the lower of cos1 or market and 
no market adjus1ments were deemed necessary in 2019. JMC's agreements wi1h i,s permanent investors include 
provisions that could require JMC to repurchase loans under certain c ircumstances, and also provide for the assessment 
of fees iflC>ans go into default or are refinanced within specified periods of time. JMC has never been required to 
repurchase a loan and no allowance has been made as of December 31, 2019 for possible repurchases. No provision for 
early defaul1 or refinancing costs is deemed necessary a1 December 31. 2019. 

JMC enters into comrnitments with its cusiomers to originate loans where 1he interest ra1e on the loans is 
de t.ermined (locked) prior to funding. While this subjects JMC 10 the risk interest rates may change from the 
commitmem date to the fonding date. JMC simuhaneously enters into financial agreemems (best e1Torts forward sales 
commitmems) with its permanent in\'cstors giving JMC 1hc right to deliver (put) loans to the investors al spcci ficd 
yields, thus em1bling JMC to manage its exposure 10 changes in interest r.ttes such that JMC is not subject to fluctuations 
in foi r values of these agreeme nts due to changes in interest rates. However, a default by a pennancnt investor required 
10 purchase loans under such an agreement would expose JMC to potential fluctuation in selling prices o f loans due 10 

changes in interest rate. The fair value of rate lock commitments and forward sales commitments was conside re.d 
immare rial at Decmbcr 31, 2019. Gains and losses on 1he sale of mongages as well as orgination fees. brokerage fees, 
intcrst rate lock-in fees and other fees paid by mongagors are include in 01hcr income on 1he Company's consolida1ed 
income stalement. 

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO): 

O REO comprises properties acquired in partial or to1al satisfaction of problem loans. The properties are 
recorded at the lower of cost or fair value at the date acquired. Losses arising at the time of acquisition o r such properties 
arc charged againsl 1he allowance for cn .. -dit losses. Subsequent write-downs that may be required and expenses o f 
operation are included in other expenses. Gains and losses realized from the sale of O REO arc included in other income. 
At December 31, 2019 there were four properties with a combined value ofS2.4 million included in other real estate 
owned, and a1 December 3 1. 2018 1here were nine propenies with a combined ,1alue ofS3.7 million. 

Bank Premises and Equipment and Oc11rcciation: 

Subsidiaries premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The provision for 
depreciation is computed using primarily the straigh1-line method over the estimated useful lives of the asselS. ranging 
from l\vo 10 fifty years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over che lesser o f the 1enns of the leases or their 
estimated useful lives. Expenditures for improvements that extend the life oran asset arc capita lized and depn.-ciatcd 
over the asset's remaining useful life. Gains or losses realized on the d isposition o r premises and equipment arc rencctcd 
in the consolidated s1a1cments of income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance arc charged to premises and 
equipment a,; incurred. Computer software is recorded at cost and amortized over three to five years. 
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Intangible Assets ;lnd Amortization: 

During 2012, Delmarva reslmctu red three borrowings wi1h the FHLB and incurred a tot.:tl prepayment penalty 
of SI .6 mi llion (see Note 8). The prcpaymcm penalty was arnortized to final maturity as an adjustment to interest 
expense and was fully amor1ized al December 31. 2018. 

During 2019 the Company tlcquircd Virginia Partners Bank and during 2018 Delmarva acquired Liberty Bell 
Bank. ASC 350, ln1angibles-Goodwill and Other (ASC350). prescribes accoun1ing for intangible assets subsequent to 
inilial recognition. Acquired intangible assets (such as core deposit intang ibles) are separate ly recognized if the benefit 
of the assets can be sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, and .Jlll()ltized over their useful lives. Intangib le 
assets related 10 1he acquisitions are amortized (see Note 18). 

Long•Li\•ed Assets: 

The canying value of long-lived a.~sets n.nd certa in ide ntifiable intangibles is reviewed by management for 
impairmenl whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an assel may not be 
recoverable as prescribed by ASC 360-10 Property, Plant. and Equipment As of Dt.---ccmbcr 3 1. 2019 and 2018, certain 
loans were deemed to be impn.ired (see Nore 3). 

I nc.o me Taxes: 

The Company nnd its subs idiaries file a consolida ted Federal tax return. The provision for Federal and stale 
income taxes is based upon the consolidate.d results of operations, adjusted for tax-exempt income. Deferred income 
1axes are provided under ASC 740-10 Income Taxes by applying enacted stalutory rates to temporary differences 
bc1wccn fina ncial and tax bases o f assets and liabilities. 

Temporary d ifferences. which g ive rise to deferred tax assets relate principally to lhe allowance for credit 
losses, accumulated amortization of intangibles. impairment loss on securities. ne1 operating loss carryforward. net 
losses on other real estate owned, rind unrealized dcpreciaiion on securities available for sale. Temporary differences 
which give rise to deferred tax liabilities relate to accumulated depreciation, deferred gains and accumulated accretion of 
discount on debt S4..."'<:uritics. 

Credit Risk: 

The Company has deposits in other financial institutions in cxc<!Ss o f amounts insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The Subsidiaries have not experienced any losses in such accoun1s and management does 
not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risks with respect to such de posits. 

Cash and Cash Equh·alents: 

The Company has included cash and due from banks. interest bearing deposits in other financial institutions:, 
and Federal funds sold as cash and cash equivaknts for purpose-s o f repelling cash flows. 

Accounting fo r Srock Based Compe11satio11: 

The Company follows ASC 718•10, Compe11satio11-Stock Compensatiofl for accounting and reporting for 
stock-based compensation plans. ASC 718-10 defines a fair value at grant date to be used for measuring compensation 
expense for s tock-based coinpen.sa1ion plans to be recognized in the statement of income. 

During 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Updated (ASU) 
2016-10 Technict1I Correc1io11.s ond lmproi•emems, which replaced the definition of fair value previously used in ASC 
7 18 with the definition of fair value from ASC 820. Ftiir Va/11e Meas11reme111. The amendments aliec1ing ASC 718-40 
were effective and applied prospectively by the Company beginning January 1, 2016. Management believes the resulting 
change in fair value measurement methodology is immaterial 10 the financial smtements. 
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Ear-nings Per- Share 

Ba~ic earnings per common share are de termined by dividing ne t income adjusted for preferred s tock dividend.,;. 
declared and/or accumulated and accretion o f warrants by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for 
each year, giving re troactive effect 10 s tock splits and dividends. Weighted average shares oulStanding were 10,924 ,902, 
and 9,69 1,459 for the years ended Dec.ember 3 1, 2019 and 2018. respectively. Calculations of d iluted e.amings per 
common share include the average dihuive common stock equivalents ou1standing during the year, unless they are 
anti-dilutive. Dilutive commo n equivalent shares consist of stock option~ calculated using the treasury s tock method and 
restricted s toc.k awards (See Note 14). 

Rec-ent Acco unti ng Pr onounce me nts 

During June 20 16, the F ASB issued ASU 201 6~ 13, "Financial Ins truments-Credit Los..~s (Topic 326): 
Measurement o f Cred it Losses on Financial Ins truments.·· ASU 2016-13 requires the measurement o f all expected c redit 
losses for financial assets held at the repon ing dale based on historical experience, current condi1ions. and reasonable 
and supportable forecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to the s ignificant estimates and j udgments used in 
estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization's ponfolio. In 
addition. ASU 2016- 13 amends the accounting for credit losses on available- for-sale debt securities and purchased 
financial assets with cred it deterioration. ASU 2016-13 will be effective for U.S. Securilies and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) fi lers for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years. beginning after December 15. 2019. For 
public companies that arc nol SEC filers, the amendments in this ASU arc cflCctivc for fiscal years, and inlcrim periods 
within those fiscal years, beginning after De.cember 15, 2020. The Company is current ly evaluating the potential impact 
o f ASU 2016-13 on our consolida1ed financial s1atemen1s. We a.re currently working through o ur imple1nentaiion plan 
which includes assessment and documcntalion o f proccs.st~s, inlcmal controls and data sources; model development and 
doc-umentation: and systems configuration, among other things. We a re a lso in the process of implementing a 1hird -party 
vendor solution 10 assist us in the application of the ASU 2016-13. 

The adoption of the ASU 2016-13 could result in an increase in the. allowance for loan losses as a result of 
changing from an "incurred loss" model. which encomp asses allowances for current known and inherent losses within 
the portfolio, to an "expected loss" model, which encompass<.·.s: a llowances for losses expected to be incurred over lhe 
life o f the portfolio. Funhermo re, ASU 20 l 6• 13 will necessitate thal we establish an allowance for expected credit losses 
for certain debt securities and other financial assets. While we are currently unable to reasonably esliinate the impact of 
adopting ASU 2016· 13, \\'C ex peel that the impact of adoption will be significantly influenced by the composi1ion, 
cl1aracte-ristics and quality of our loan and securities portfolios as well as the pre,•aiJing economic condit ions and 
forecasts as of the adoption date. 

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, " Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): 
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment". The amendments in this ASU simplify how an entity is required to test 
goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment tesl. S1ep 2 measures a goodwill 
impa irment loss by comparing the implied fai r value of a reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of that 
goodwil l. Jnstead, under the amendments in lhe ASU. an entity should perform ils annual. o r interim. goodwill 
impairment tests b)' comparing the fair value of a rcponing unit with its carrying amount. An entity still has the option 
to perform the. qualitat ive assessment for a reporting unit to dete rmine if the quanlitative impa irment is necessary. Public 
business entities that are U.S. Securities and Exchange Commisssion (SEC) fi lers should adopt the amendments in 1his 
ASU for annua l or interim goodwill impa inncnt tes ts in fiscal years beginning after December 15. 2019. Early adoption 
is permitted for interim or a nnual goodwill impainnent tests perfomied on testing dates after Jauary I, 2017. The 
guidance is not e.~pected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial posilions. results of operations or 
disclosures. 

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, ·'Fair Value Measuremem (Topic 820): Disclosure 
Frame\1r·ork-Changes to the Disclosure Requirement's for Fair Va lue Measurement" This ASU contains some technical 
adjustments related to the fair value d isclosure requirements of public companies. Included in this ASU is the add itional 
disclosure requirement of unrealized gains and losses for the period in recurring level 3 fair value disclosures and the 
range and wcigh1ed avcrngc of significant unobservable inputs, among other technical changes. ASU 20 I g. J 3 is 
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cfTec1ivc for fiscal years. ond in1critn periods wi1hin 1hosc fiscal >•cars. beginning a0cr December 15. 2019. Ellrly 
adoption is penni11cd for nny remo, ed or modific<I disclosures. The adoption of ASU 2018-13 is ,,01 expected 10 have a 
nu1tcrit1l impact on 1he Company's con!t0lidu1cd financial statements. 

In April 2019. The FASB issued ASU 2019-04. "Codification lmpro,cmcnts 10 Topic 326. l 'innnciol 
Instruments Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivotives ond llcdging. ond Topic 825. Financial Instruments." This ASU 
cl(lrifics and improves areas of guidance relttled to the recently issued standards on credit los,cs. hc<lging. and 
recognition o.nd measurement ir-.cluding improvements resulting from \1nriou.s Transition Resource Group Mcc1ings. The 
amendments ore effect for fiscal years beginning oner December IS. 2019 ond interim periods within those year. Early 
adoption is penni11cd. The Company is cu,TCmly assessing the impact ASU 2019-04 will hove on its consolidotcd 
financial ir.Httcmcnts. 

In Moy 2019. the FASB issued ASU 2019-05. "Financial ln,trumcnts Crc-dit Losses (Topic 326): Targeted 
Tronsi1ion Relief." The amendments in this ASU provide entities 1hn1 hn\'e ccnain instl'\lmen1s wi1hin 1he scope of 
Sub1opic 326-20 with an option to irrevocably elcc1 1hc fnir value op1ion in Sub1opic 825-10, applied on on i11,1rumen1-
by-ins1rumen1 basis for eligible ins1rumc111s. upon 1hc adoption ofT01>ic 326. The fnir vnluc 01>1ion elcc1ion docs no1 
apply 10 hcld-10--muturity dcb1 securities. An cnlity 1hat clcclS the: foir ,rnluc: option ~hould !tUb!tcquc:ntly measure 1hosc 
inS1rumcn1s at fair vnluc " 'ith changes in foir value flowing th,·ough enrnings. The nmcndrncms are effective for fiscal 
years beginning aflcr December 15, 2019, 11nd interim period~ within 1hosc fiscal years. The amcndcmcnts should be 
applied on a n>Odified-re1ros1iec1ivc bn,is by menns of n cumula11vc-.,ffce1 ndjus1mc111 to 1hc opening balnncc of rernined 
earning blancc on 1hc balance shcc1. Early adop1ion is pcrmiucd. The Company is currently assessing 1hc impttc11ha1 
ASU 2019-04 will ho,e on ils consohd,11cd finonciol >l!llcmcnts. 

In November 2019, 1hc F ASB issued ASU 2019-11, "Codificntion lmprovcmcms to Topic 326. Finnncinl 
lnst1·umcn1S Credit Losses." This ASU addresses issues roised by slukeholdcrs dur111g lhc implcmcn1a1ion of ASU No. 
2016-13. "Finnncial lns1rumcn1s - Crodi1 Losses (Topic 326): Mensurcmcn1 of Credit Los,cs on Financinl lnstrumcn1s." 
Among other narrow .. scopc improvcmcms. the new ASU clarifies guidance around how 10 rcpon cxpcc1cd recoveries. 
"Cxpcct\.xl re<:O\ cries" d~ribcs u :,,i1untion in which nn organianion rccogniLe.S a full or par1i11l wri1e-01T of the 
a1noni1.cd cost basis ofa financial 11sse1, bu1 then lmcr de1cnnincs 1hm the amount wri11cn off, or a ponion of that 
omoun1. will in fac1 be rcC0\'Crcd. While applying 1hc credit los,es ,111ndnrd. s1akeholders. ques1ioned whether expected 
recoveries were permined on assets 1ha1 had already shown credit dc1erioration at 1he time of purchase (also known ns 
PCI) assc1s). In response to this question, the ASU pcnnhs organiza1ions to n..-cord expected recoveries on PCD n:,,sets. 
In odd it ion to other narrow technical im1>roven1en1s. the ASU also reinforces e,:is1ing guidance that prohibits 
organizations from recording ncg.ati\C allowance for available-.for•salc debt sccuri1ies. The ASU includes effective dutcs 
and 1ransi1ion rcquircmcms 1h01 vnry depending on whether or no1 an c111i1y has nlrcndy odopted ASU 2016-13. The 
Company is currently assessing 1hc impac11hu1 AUS 2019-1 1 ""' hove on its consolidated finnncial s1u1cmen1s. 

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12. •·Jnc<rn,c Taxc, (Topic 740) - Simplifying the Accounting 
for Income Taxes." The ASU is expec1ed 10 reduce cost nnd complexity related 10 the accounting for income rnxes by 
removing specific exceptions to general principles in Topic 740 (eliminating 1hc need for an organiwtion 10 annlyzc 
whether ccnain exceptions apply inn given period) and improving finonciol s1atcmcn1 preparers' application of certain 
income ta.x•rclated guidance. This ASU is pan of the FASB's simplification initiuti\'c 10 mnkc narrow•scopc 
simplifications and improvements 10 accounting standards through o series ofshon•term projects. For public business 
entities, 1he amendments are effective for fiscnl years beginning af\cr Dec.ember IS, 2020, and interim periods "~1hin 
those fiscal years. ll,Jrly ndop1io11 is permitted. The Company is currcn1ly assessing the impac1 1ha1 ASU 2019-12 will 
have on its consolida1cd fin.uncial statements. 

In January 2020, 1he FASB issued ASU 2020-01. "Investments - Equity Securities (Topic 321). lnvcs1men1s 
Equity Me1hod and Join1 Ventures (Topic 323), and Derivatives and I !edging (Topic 815)." The ASU is based on a 
consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force and is expec1.ed to increase comparability in accounting for 1hese 
tr8n§8Ctions. ASU 2016-01 made targeted improvements to nccoun1ing for financial ins1ruments, including providing an 
entity the ability 10 measure cenain equity securities without readily de1cm,inablc fair values a1 cost.. less nny 
impainncnt. plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transac1ions for the identical or 
similar investment of1hc same issuer. Among other 1opics, 1he nt'nendrnen1s clarifies that an emiry should consider 
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observable transactions that require it to either apply or discontinue the equity method of accounting. For public 
business e nlitics, the amend menl"i in the ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2020, and 
interim pe-riods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is c urrently assessing the impact 
that ASU 2020-01 will have on its consolidated financial statements. 

Effective November 25, 2019. the SEC adopted Slaff Accou01ing Bulletin (SAO) I 19. SAO I 19 updated 
portions o f SEC interpretative guidance 10 a lign with F ASB ASC 326, "Financial lns1rumcnts - Credit Losses:· II 
covt:rs topics includ ing ( I) measuring c urrenl expected credit losses; (2) developme.nt, govemanc.e., and docume.ntation 
o f a systemat ic methodology; (3) docume-nting the results o f a systema tic methodology; and (4) validating a systematic 
methodology. 

Fina1,cfal Statement Preseutal ion 

Certain amounts in 1he prior years' financial statemenrs have been reclassified to confonn to the current year's 
presentation. 

Note 2. lnvcscment Securities 

Securities available for sale are as follows: 

Amortizl'd 
Cos t 

Obligations o f U.S. Governme nt agencies and 
corporations $ 10,186 $ 

Obligations of States and political subdivisions 33,885 
Mongage-backed securities 56,275 
Equity securities 4,923 

$ 105,269 $ 

Amortized 
Cost 

Obligations of U.S. Government agencies and 
corporations s 9.469 s 
Obligations o f Statt:s and political subdivisions 21,383 
Mortgage-backed securities 19,942 
Equity securities 1,500 

s 52.294 s 

Dtcembt r 31. 2019 
Dollar.fin Thou1;11nd!I. 

Grns, Grnss 
Unn:-aliud Unn-11lizl'11 

G aiD!I. Los~s 

162 s 36 
716 43 
236 90 
42 

1, 156 s 169 

Dec:eomber 31, 2018 
OMlurs in Thv11Simds 

Gron G,·oss 
Unrtallied 

C aimi 

47 
139 
15 

201 

Unre.aUu d 
Loss~s 

96 
426 
553 
120 

I 195 

s 

s 

Fai r 
\'alue 

10,312 
34,558 
56,421 
4,965 

106,256 

9,420 
21,096 
19,404 
1,380 

51,300 
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Gross unrealized losses and fa ir values, aggregated by invcslmcnt category and lcng1h of time that ind ividual 
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss posi1ion, al December 31, 2019 and 2018 a re as follows: 

Securities available-for-sale: 

Obligations of U.S. Governmen1 agencies 
and corporations 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Obligations o f States and political 
subdivisions 
Equi1y Securi1ies 

l.ess lhan 12 mo11ths 
Fair Unrealized 

~ ~ 

$ 5,269 s 34 
11,600 32 

4,669 43 

Oectmber JI, 2019 
Dollurs ,·,. Thousamls 

12 months or more 
Fair Unrealized 

~ ----12!L-. 

s 2,000 $ 2 
4,489 58 

Tof2ll 
Fair Unr-ealized 

~ ----12!L-. 

s 7,269 $ 36 
16,089 90 

4,669 43 

Total securities wi1h unrealized losses ~ !-.!.!t2., S 61489 1.,__j!L S 281027 ~ 

Obligations of U.S. Governmenr agencies 
and corporations 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Obligations of States and political 
subdivisions 
Equity Securities 
Total securiti<."S with unrealized losses 

teu lha n 12 mor1ths 
Fair llnrnll7.ed 

~~ 

Dttember- .ll, 2018 
Dollurs ,·,. Tltousa11ds 

12 mon1h~ or nmr-e Total 
Fair l)nreallzed Fair Unre-allud 

~ _b2!!_ ~ ~ 

3.973 S 18 S 5,927 $ 78 S 9,900 S 96 
553 5,485 I 11 13,440 442 18,924 

9,119 81 11,977 345 2 1,096 426 
1,380 120 1,380 120 

S 18577 S 209 S 32.724 ~ S 5 1,300 S 1.195 

For individual securities classified as either available for sale or held to maturity, the Company must determine 
whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis is other than te mporary. In eslimating 
01her-1han-te.mporary impair1Ucnt losses, n1,1nagcm,m1 considers. amoog orher things, (i) t.he lc-ngtb of time and 1he 
extent to which the fai r value has been less than cost. (ii) the-financial condi1ion and near-term prospects o f the issuer, 
and (iii} lhe in1en1 and ability of1hc Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period o f time sufficient to allow for 
any anticipated recovery in fair va lue .. If the decline in fair value is considered to be other than temporary, the c:.ost basis 
of lhe individua l security shall be \.Vritten down to the fa ir value. as a new cost basis and the amount of the. \.\'Tite-do\.\'ll 
shall be included in camings (that is. accounted for as a re-alizcd loss). 

Al December 3 1. 2019 1here were 1wo agency securizies. eiglt1 mongage-backed securities (MOS). and four 
collatcralizcd mortgage obligations (CMO). that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for more than 
twelve months. Mam,gcmcnt found no evidence of OTTI on any of these securities and believes that unrc..··tlizcd losses 
a re due to nuctuations in fa ir values resulting from changes in market interest rates and are c.onsidered te mporary. As of 
December 3 t. 2019. mm,agemenl also believes it has the ability and intent to hold the securities for a period of time 
sufficient for a recovery of cost. 

During the period ending December 3 1. 2019 the Company sold 12 SC<':urilies, resulting in a gain o f SI 0 
thousand. During the period ending December 31, 20 I 8, the Company did nol sell any securities. Thirteen securities 
were e ither matured or called during 20l9, resulting in a ne t gain of$97 thousand. Four securities we.re e ither matured or 
called during 2018. resulting in no gain or loss. 
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The Compnny realized a loss ofS9 thousand on equity securities during the year ended December 31, 2019. 

Contractual mat\lrities of investment sec-urities at December 31. 2019 are shown below. Actual mawrities may 
differ from contr.lc tua l maturities because debtors may have the right to call o r prepay obligations with or without call or 
prepaymcm penalties. Mortgage-backed securi1ies have no stated maturity and primarily reflect investments in various 
Pass.through and Participation Certificates issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Government 
Na,ional Mortgage Association. Repayment of mortgage.-backcd securities is affected by 1hc contractual rcpayn-.cni 
terms o f the underlying mortgages collate raliz ing these obligations and the current level of intcrc.st rates. 

The following is a summary of maturities. calls, or repricing of sce-uritics available for sale: 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due atler tive years through icn years 
Due after ten years or more 
Mortgage. backed, due in monthly installments 

Due in one year or less 
Due atler one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due atler ten years or more. 
Mongage-backed. due in monthly installments 

O~mber 31. 2019 
Securltie5, 

A\'11i.llablt for Silllt 
Dollar.\· in TJwusamls 

Amortized 
Cost 

S 2,252 
4,030 

20,129 
22,583 
56,275 

S 105,269 

Fair 
Value 

S 2,250 
4,026 

20,621 
22,938 
56,421 

S 106,256 

Dcoc-rnbcr JI, 2018 
s«:urilics 

Available for Sale 
Doi/a~ /11 niouswids 

An10ttized Fai.r 
Cost Value 

S 5,175 $ 5,166 
4,727 4,649 

10,566 10,521 
11,884 11,560 
19.942 19,404 

S 52,294 S 51.300 

The Company has pledged certain securities as collateral for qualified customers' deposit accounts at 
December 31, 20 I 9 and 20 I 8 as follows: 

Amonized cost 
Fair value 

2019 1018 

S 9 ,143 $ 8,597 

~ ~ 
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Note 3. Loans. Allowance for Credit Losses aod 1mpa1red Loans 

Major categories of loans as of December 31 are as follows: 

(Dt>llars i111houJ111tds) 

Originated Loans 
Real Estate Mortgage 

Cons1ruction and land development 
Residential real estate 
Nonresidential 
Home equity loans 

Commercial 
Consumer and other loans 

Acquired Loans 
Real Estate Mongage 

Cons1nic1ion a,,d land development 
Residen1ial real estate 
No11residential 
I lome equity loans 

Commercial 
Consumer and other loans 

Total Lorms 
Real Estate Mortgage 

Cons1ruc1ion and land dcvclopmcnl 
Residential real es1ate 
Nonrcs:idcn1ial 
Home equity loans 

Commercial 
Consurner and other loans 

less: Unamonized discounts on acquired loans 
less: Allowance for loan losses 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

At Dl-Ct-mbu 31, 2019 Al O<.-ccmber 31. 2018 

59,236 5 63,376 
108,590 102,970 
325,916 292,766 

13,736 13.801 
52,838 46,059 

2,669 2,900 
562,985 521,872 

26,034 s 10.276 
101,088 22,431 
222,075 59,804 
24, 176 7,101 
60,675 12,406 
3 091 13 

437, 139 112,03 I 

85,270 $ 73,652 
209,678 125,401 
547,991 352.570 
37,912 20,902 

113,513 58,465 
S 760 2.913 

1,000, 124 633,903 
(6,136) (1,327) 
(7,304) (7,063) 

986,684 5 625.513 

Management has an established methodology to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses that 
assesses the risks and losses inherent in the loan portfolio. For purposes of detem1ining the allowance for loan losses, the 
Company has segmented the loan ponfolio into the following classitientions; 

Real Estate Mortgage 

• Constm ction and Land Development 

Residential Real Estate 

Nonresidcmtial 

Home Equity Loans 

• Commercial 
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Consumer and Other Loans 

Each of these segments are reviewed and analyzed quarterly using the weig.lued average historical charge-offs 
over a current three year period for their respective segmen1s as well as 1he follo,.ving qua lilative factors: 

factors. 

Changes in the levels and trends in delinquencies, non-accruals, clas .. "iified assets and troubled debt 
restrucniri ngs 

Changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio 

Effects of any changes in lending policies. procedures, including underwriting standards and collections. 
charge off and recovery practices 

Changes in the expe.rience, depth and ability of management 

Changes in the national and local economk conditions and developments, including the condition of 
various market segments 

Changes in the concentration of credits within each pool 

Changes in the quality of the Company's Joan review system and the degree of oversight by the Board 

Changes in external factors suc.h as competition and the legal environment 

The above factors result in a FAS 5. as codified in f' ASB ASC 450-10- 20, calculated reserve for environmental 

All credit exposures cousjde red to have a non-pass rati11g with outstanding balances less than S250 thousand 
and all credit exposures considered to have a pass rating are reviewed and analyzed quarterly using lhe weighted average 
historical charge-offs over a curre.nt three year period as a percentage of total charge-offs for the same period for their 
respective segments as well as the qualitative factors discussed above. The weighted average historical percentage is 
further adjusted based on delinquency risk trend assessments and conccntmtion risk assessments. 

All credit exposures conside red to have non-pass rating with outstanding balances greater than $250 thousand 
a rc to be reviewed no less than quarterly for the purpose of dctcm1ining if a specific allocation is needed for that credit. 
The detennination for a specific reserve is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows, 
d iscoumed a t the loan's effective imerest rate, except when the sole (remaining) source of repayment for the. loan is the 
opcrntion or liquidation o fthc collateral. In these cases management uses the current fa ir value of the collateral, less 
selling cost when foreclosure is probable. instead of discounted cash flov.rs. If management detennines that the value of 
the loan is less than 1he recorded investment in the loan (net of previous charge-offs, deferred loan fees or costs and 
unamortized premium or discount), impairment is recognized through an a llowance estimate or a charge~off to the 
a llo,vance. 

The establishment of a specific reserve does not necessarily mean that the credit with the specific reserve will 
definite ly incur loss at rhe reserve level.his only an estimation of potential loss based upon antic ipated events. A 
specific reserve will not be established unless loss clements can be dctennincd and quanti fied based on knO\.\'Il facts. The 
total a llowance rcnects management's estimate o f loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2019 and 
2018. 
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The following table presenrs the 1otal a llowance by loan segment. 

Real Estatt' Mortipse 
COJL,;;truc1ion 

:.lnd l.:10d Resi<fcntial Consumcr 
[)(llf<1rs i,i 11iousa,r,h Developmem Real Es1a,e Nooresiden1ial Home Eqtiit)' Commercial aod O1her Un.,llocated ~ 
Balance ;1.1 December J 1, 2018 

Beginning llalance -
origin::itcd loans 647 1,511 J,610 115 (,13 l.l ... , 7,1131 

Chaq;t"-otf$-Ol'lg.iMtt"d 
IOaJ.lS (II) (193) (460) (105) (689) (126) (1,584) 
Re<.:O\·l'rics--0rig;imued 
loims II IS1 92 SI 48 384 
Provi,si(lfl-()rig:inatcd 
loans (45) (130) 813 125 823 79 (224) 1,441 
Allowance al loc:1tioo 
udjustm<:nl 

Tomi Allowance on origim'llcd 
_@ ----'.!ll _____Jfil 

____ 7 _____llli _____fill 

loans 597 1.363 4,05~ 14-:z 784 14 266 7,l:ZS 
fkgirming Ralancc -
acquired loons 16 32 

Chaq,,e,.oifi.-ocqu.ire-d 
loans 
Re(O\'erics-acq1.1ircd 
IO;)rlS 
Provl!oion-oc,quin,d loons 
Allowance nllo,::atioo 
ndjusamcnt ___ 5 __ 1_7 ____ 6 _____ill ___ 2_6 __ 4_7 

Total Allow.1ncc on acquired 
loans 5 17 15 42 79 

Jlal111'CC a1 Dcccrnbct JI, 2019 602 1.380 4 074 142 ----.lli. 14 ~ 7,304 
h'tcfo•idually e~lu.ncd for 
impairment: 

Oahmcc in a llowance - s 21(, s ., s s 274 - s s 572 
Rc:l :;ucd loon balance 

Collocli\'cl)' cvalumcd !Or 
___ 72_J ~ ~ ___ 9_ ~ ~ 

impiairmcm: 
Balance in a llowance 60':Z 1,164 3,992 14! s 55! 14 266 s 6,732 
Rdalcd loan balance ~ l05,J81 ~ ~ ~ ~ 9 73 664 
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Note: The balances above include unamonized discounts on acquired loans of$6.1 million. 

Construe lion 
Real ES1a1c M.ort12S:c 

and Land Rcsidcmial Consumer 
Dollal'"SlttT1tQl'SU11'4 O(velopmcnt Real Estate Nonrcsklemi:i.l Home E9uity Commercial and()[hcr UMlloc:i.tcd Toral 
Balance at Dcttmbc.T 31. 2017 s 589 Sl.583 SJ269 s 161 r-T2o Sl6 s765"" Sb.703 

Ch11rgc.offs-origlna1od 

'"""' (58) (J32) (45,) (20) (129) (161) (1.153) 
Rccovcrics----origin:i.tcd 
loons 109 80 41 48 51 JJ8 
f>rovis.ioi.-orig:in.11ed 
loo,~ l07 161 7}J (60) 202 107 (75) 1,175 
Allowance allocatHX1 
udjuslml"'llt 

Tool AlloW.tll(C on 
___ (_9) ___ (_7) ~ ______ill! 

originated loons. 647 l.lll 3,620 )15 625 l l 490 7.031 
Churge-of1s-oc.quired 
loons 
fkcovcrics-acquircd 
loan.~ 
P'rovision----acquircd loons 
Allowimcc alloc:i.1io11 
adjusrn,ent ____ 9 ___ 7 ___ ,_6 _..B.. 

T(l(al Allowance on acquired 
lo.m~ • 7 16 J2 

lfalnocc :at Drocmbcr JI. 2018 M7 
lndh·idu.nllyc\"lllu.n1cd for 

~ ~ 122 Ml 13 490 ~ 

impainncn1: 
[blancc in a.llowancc 580 278 6 178 s 1,042 
Related loon balance ~ S,082 ~ ___ 69_J _____!2E_ 2.5,454 

Collectively cvn luatcd for 
impainncnt: 

Ralancc in allowance M7 s 941 J,351 116 463 IJ 490 s 6.021 
Related lo.in bala,'11,,.'<' ~ ---1!1.!!!'!.. ~ ~ ~ ~ 607.122 

Note:: The ba lances above include unamorilizcd discounts on acquired loans of S 1.3 m illion. 

The Company had an unallocated amounl (overage) ofripproximatcly S2661housand in the allowance that is 
rcncctcd in the above table as of December 3 1, 2019. The Company had an unallocated nmount (overage) of 
approximately $490 1housand in the a llowance that is reflected in the above table as o f December 31. 2018. 
Management is comfortable with this amount as they feel ii is adequate to absorb additional inherent potential losses in 
1he loan portfolio. 

Credit Quality Information 

The folloY.•ing table represenL-o;; credit exposures by creditworthiness category for the pe.riod ending 
December 3 1. 2019. The use o f eredim:onhiness categories to grade loans permits managemcm to est imate a portion of 
credit risk. The Company's intemal creditworthiness is based on experience with similarly graded credits. Loans that 
trend upwnrd IO\vard hig.hercredit grades typically have less credit risk and loans that migrate downward cypically have 
more credit risk. 

The Company's internal risk ratings are as follows: 

Excellent- minimal risk. (normally supponcd by ple-dgcd deposhs, Un ired States govcn11nen1 
securi1ies, etc.) 

2 Superior- low risk. (all of the risks associated with 1his credit based on each of1he bank's 
credi1,1o:orthiness criteria are minimal) 
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3 Good-modcra1cly low risk. (most of the risks associated with this c.redit based on each of the bank's 
crcditwon.hincss cri1cria arc minimal) 

4 Fair/Wa1eh-modcrate risk. (the weiglucd overall risk associated with this credit based on each of the 
bank's creditwonhiness criteria is acceptable) 

5 Marginal- rnodera,ely high risk. (possesses deficiencies which corrective action by the bank would 
rerncdy; potential watch list) 

6 Substandard---(the bank is inadequately protected and there exis1s the dis1inc1 possibili1y of sustaining 
some loss if not corrected) 

Doub1fol-(weaknesses make collec1ion or liquidation in full, based on currently existing facts. 
improbable) 

8 Loss--(of little vaJue; not warrantc.-d as a bankable asset) 

Non-accruals 

In general. a loan will be placed on non-accrual status at the end of the reponing month in which the interest or 
principal is past due more than 90 days. Exceptions to the policy arc those loans tha1 arc in 1he process of collection and 
are well secured. A well-secured loan is secured by collateral with sufficient market value to repay principal and all 
accrued interest. ln1crcst that would have accrued under the terms of loans that were placed on nonaccrual totaled $255 
1housand and $329 1housand for the years ended Dec.ember 31, 20 t 9 and 2018, respectively. Loans past due 90 days or 
more and still accruing interest toraled SS thousand and $606 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 
respectively. Management believes 1hesc particular loans arc well secured and arc in the process of collection of all 
amounts owed. 

A summary of loans by risk ra1ing is as follows: 

Real bl.lie Sccumi 

IH<"embe r 31, 11119 

f::>:ccllen1 
Superior 
Good 
f-'.u ir 
Marginml 
Substandard 
TOTAL 
Non-Acaual 

Co1tslru<:lion & 
Land 

Dc~·dopm<"nl 

8.l,773 
757 

Rtsidt'.lltial 
Real Eslal<" 

13g 
200,999 

3.J7J 
511 

221 4.264 
84,751 S209.286 ~-=,~1,~~ 

S 2.323 
_______ ,_2 

Nonresidential Home Equity Commad:11 
Dolhirs fo TJwu~amls 
,os $ s 6.089 

1,818 
99,973 

1,710 

3.6.Sl 122 
S25.465 37,528 

7.710 64 

7.319 
~ S 37,714 
~$---, 
S 7,934 S 
___ 2_0 

2,407 
S 111,997 
~ 
S 38 ___ , 

Consumer& 
~~ 

Il l 
I 

5.557 
20 

S 5.689 s---
$ 

S 6,60S 
5,732 

953.295 
13.6.W 

5 11 
14,lll 
~ 
~ 
S 10.295 
__ 3_3 

Troubled debt ,._-stmctureii 
Number ormR actounll 
OreakOOwn ofTI)Rs 
TDRs on Non-.a<:1.,-ru.tl 
T Oils P.ist Due 30-89 
Performing ·rotts 
TOTAL 

90-I s 926 S 38 S S 1,868 

Total Non-p<"Tfom1ing TOR IIC't'ounls 
Numb<:t of noo,performint TDRs 

1.419 
SLlZ3 
s "°' 3 

'·""" ~ 
S 916 

3 

$---~ $---
8.427 

S 10.29S s ___ L____2!_ s ___ S 1.868 ___ , 1 
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Real Esm1c Secured 
Construct100 & 

umd R~idcmial Consumer & 
0,,."'QCtnbc:r 31, 2018 Dcvcl~mcm Rail Esta1e Noorcsidcmial Home Equity Commercial ~ ~ 

l)Qlllll'S /,t nu)US(lttds 
Excellent 1.143 9.63 1 125 s 10,399 
St1P','>fior 156 7.523 110 2,011 4 9.805 
Good 73,069 11),777 328,178 19.624 4).863 2.785 581.295 
Fair 25 3.658 8.059 941 2.106 14,788 
Marginal 338 112 69 268 787 
Subsl.anda.rd 220 7.482 6.851 107 34) 15,00) 
TOTAL 73.652 sTis.i8s ~ $ 20.782 $ 58.222 s""""I9l4 S 632.$76 
Non-Accrual 220 S 4,440 ~ ~ r-rn $--- S 9.148 
Troubled dd:>t r~tnico.1rcs 40 s 7,162 s 10.301 $ 107 s $ 206 s 17,816 
Number ofTDR 13<:COWllS I ~ ___ 2_7 ___ I ___ ) __ 5_2 
Rrcakdov..n of TD Rs 
iORs on Non•ac-<:rual 40 l.183 2,506 107 175 s 6.012 
TDR.s Past Due 30-89 640 JI 671 
Pcrl'onning TDRs 3.979 7.155 l J.1}4 

TOTAL 40 sT.i62" ~ ~ $--- $206 siTii6 
Total Non-performing TDR accoums 40 ~ $ J.146 $ 107 s ___ $ 206 S 6.682 
Number or non-performing TDRs ___ 9 9 I 3 23 

The following table includes an aging analysis of the recorded investment of past due financing receivables as 
of Dcecmbcr 31, 2019 and 2018: 

JO · 59 Days 60· 89 Days 
At Ot·ccmbtr Jl.101!> Pas1 Due* Past Due** 

Rc:al Estl.lle 
C-Ons1ruc1ions and land development s 4.?4 
Residential 1.296 677 
Nonresidential 635 144 
Home equity loans 

Commercial 231 1,207 
Consumer and other loans ___ I ___ 1_9 
TOTAL ~ ~ 

lncludes S956 thousand of non-accrual loans. 

Includes S81 thousand of non-accrual loans. 

*** Includes S2.6 million of non-accrual loans. 

Recorded 
lnvcs1mcn1 

Grea1cr than Total >90 D.1ys 
90 Days To<al Cum:nt Financing Past Due 

Pasl Due0
" Pas:l Due 0.'llance RC4.-:ci~bles•* and Accrui11g 

---[)(J//ar3i11 71rQru~ 

177 s 601 s 84.669 85.270 s 
702 2.675 207,003 209.678 

11823 2,602 545,189 S47,991 
37,912 37,912 

94 1,532 111,981 113,513 
20 ~ ~ ___ s 

S 2,796 S7,430 S 992,694 1,000,124 _s ___ s 
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Total financing receivable balances do not include unamonizcd d iscounts of$6. l million. 

Greater 1han 
30 • 59 Da)'S 60 -89 D.t)'l! 90 Days Toull C111Ttnt 

Al December 31 . 2018 Past Due P11s1 Due P:c.1 Due• P11st Due O:aliince 
Dr>lk,rs i,1 Tlro11s(mdJ· 

Real Estate 
Cons1rt1ctions and land devclopmer11 s 9 200 378 s 587 s 73,065 
Residential 1,277 383 1,615 3,275 122,126 
Nonrcsidenti::11 867 1.542 2,751 5.160 347,410 
Home equity loans 15 107 122 20.780 

Commcrcit,l 1.028 33 268 1.329 57,136 
Co1lsumer and mhc.r loans 7 7 2,906 
TOTAL S 3,203 S 2,158 S 5,119 S 10.480 S 623,423 

Includes S4.5 million of non-accrual loans. 

Tolal financing receivable balances do not include unamortized discounts $1.3 million. 

Impaired Loans 

Kccordcd 
lnvcsm1cnt 

Tocal >90 lhY> 
Financing rasr Due 

Receivables,.• and Accruing 

73,652 338 
125,401 
352,570 

20.902 
58,465 268 

2,913 
S 633,903 S 606 

Impaired loans are defined as non-accrual loans, rroubled debt restmc.nirings, purchase credit impaired loans 
("PC!") and loaos risk rated a "6" or above. When management identifies a loan as impaired. the impairmc.m is 
measured for potcn1ial loss based on the present value or expected folUre cash nows. discoumed at the loan's effective 
inte rest rntc, except when the sole (rema ining) source o f repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation o f the 
collateral. In these cases management used the current fair value of t he collateral, less selling cost when foreclosure is 
probable. insread of discounted cash Oows. If management detennines that the value of the impaired loan is less than the 
rec-0rded investmenl in the loan (net of previous charge-offs, deferred loan fees or costs and unamonized premium or 
d iscount), impain11cnl is recognized through rm allowance C.'itimatc or a charge.off to 1hc a llowance. 

\Vhen the ultimate collectability of the total principal ofan impaired loan is in doubt and the loan is on 
non-accrual status. all payments are applied 10 principal, under the cost recovery method. When the uh imatc 
colleclabilily of1he total principal ofan impaired loan is nol in doubt and the loan is on non-accrual s1arus, contracnial 
interest is credited to interest income when received. under the cash basis method. 

The following table includes the recorded i1westmcnt and unpaid principal ba lances for impaired financing 
receivables with the associated allowance amount, ifapplic.able. Managemem de.t.ermined the specific reserve in the 
allowance based on the presem value ofex.pec1cd future cash Oov.is. discounted a11he loan's effective interest rate. except 
when lhc remaining source of repayment for the loan is 1hc opcralion or liquida1ion of the collateral. In those cases, the 
current fa ir value of the colhuc ral, less selling costs was used to dctcnninc the speci fic allO\'rJncc recorded. 

Also presented a re the avem£e recorded inve~\"tments in the impaired loans and the related amount of interest 
recognized during the time within the period that the impa ired loans were impaired. When the ultimate collectability of 
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the total principal of an impa ired loan is in doubt and the loan is on no n-accrua l status. all payments a re applied to 
princ ipal, unde r the cos1 recovery method. 

Dtttmbtr 3 I. 2019 

Impaired loans with specific reserves: 
Real &tate 1\olortgage 

Construction and land dc\'dopmcnt 
Residential real est.-ne 
Nonrc.,,idcntial rc:d ~tale 
Home ~ uity loans 

Cominen.::ial 
Consumer and other loans 
Tomi impaired loon.'i with spreific reserves 
lm1)aired loons wi1h no spe(ific reserve: 
Real Esrn1e Moog.age 

Cons1ruc-1t0f1 and land dc,•doptnn'll 
Residential real estntc 
Nontesi<lential real ~tale 
Home equity lo:ms 

Commcrtial 
Consumrt and other loons 
Total imp.a.in:.-<! loons with no ~pecific rcsen.·c 
TOTAL 

Recorded 
ln\·es1mem 

727 
2!456 

1.174 

4,,457 

713 
, ,064 
9,734 

• 1,078 

IS,608 
20,065 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

727 
2,456 

1.274 

4,457 

S,5 
4,717 
9,26<, 

• 1,078 

15,61S 
20,on 

ln1t.-r~t 
l~omc Specific 

Recognized Resen·e 
Dol/ura in Th(JUfl(J,ri/.r 

260 

53 

313 

3• 
2'3 
909 

17 
87 

1,290 
1,603 

216 
82 

274 

572 

572 

Average 
Recorded 

ln\·estmetl1 

2,337 
2,86<1 

659 

5,!lli2 

'71 
4,566 

11, 181 
351 

1,441 

18,010 
23 872 

To tal impaired loans ofS20. I million at December 3 1, 2019 include PCI loan balances ofS5.4 million, which 
arc net o fa discounl o f $812 thousand. Total impaired loans also inc luded S946 thousand of loans which d id not meet 
the crite ria whereby an individual evaluation for impainncnl was required. Total impaired loans of S27.7 million at 
December 3 I, 2018 include PCI loan ba lances o f SI. I million, which a re ne1 of a discount of S582 1housand. Total 
impaired loans a lso included S 1.1 million of loans which did nol meet the crite ria whereby an individua l cvalu~nion for 
impairmem was required. These loans were pooled with oil other loans not requiring an evaluation for individual 
impairment and reviewed and analyzed using the weighted average historical charge-offs over a current three year period 
for their respective segments along with the qualitative fitctors stat.ed previously in this disclosure. co result in a ASC 
450-10-20 (FAS 5) calculated reserve. 

December 31. 2018 

lmpairtd loans with Sl)('cific rcscrn.-:s: 
Reul fatale Mortgage 

Cons1,uc1iotl and 1:,u'(! development 
Resideo,ial real est.11e 
Nonre,;Klential real c:statc 
Home cqui1y loons 

Commc:rci.il 
Consumer all(I other loans 
Touil impaired loans with specific rcscrvcs 
lmp3ircd loons Wilh ll0 specific l'CSCf\ c: 
Real futate Mortgage 

Cons1ruc1k,n and land de\·dopment 
Rcsiden1ial rC31 CSt."ltC 
No11r~klcn1ial real c:!>tate 
Home ~ uity loons 

Commercial 
Consumcf" and other loon:s 
Total mrpa.in:d loans with no spc:c1fic m;cn.•c 
TOTAL 

R«c,dcd 
lnvcstment 

3,947 
3,276 

44 

7,267 

220 
5,068 

12.629 
693 

1,805 

20.415 
27.682 

Unpaid 
Princi~I 
Balance 

4.015 
3,216 

44 

7,395 

360 
6.318 

13.545 
693 

1,805 

22.721 
30.116 

Interest 
lnconte 

Recognized 
Dollars in Thou:mntls 

174 
246 

422 

228 
1.015 

28 
112 

l.384 
1,806 

Specific 
Rcser.·e 

586 
412 

44 

1,042 

1,042 

Average 
Rcc(N'(!ccf 

ln\·cstment 

16 
4,934 
3.674 

55 
22 

8.701 

264 
3,555 

10.427 
347 

1,080 

15.673 
24,374 
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All acquired loans were initially recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. The outstanding balance and the 
carrying amount of acquired loans included in the consolidated balance sheet arc as follows: 

Acooun1ablc for u,xh.'f ASC J 10.JO (PCI loru,s) 
Ou1Jtandmg bal.ancc 
Carrying amount 

Accountable for under ASC 310.20 (non-PC I loan§} 
()ul,t:mdmg t,.,l~H)CC 
Carryi~ amoun, 

't ot:.11 acquired loom; 

Outstandin& b.11.11-« 
Carrying 11.mount 

Ott"tnWrJl .2019 DcccmbtrJl.2018 

6.4l8 
5.J7J 

430.711 
415.630 

437.139 
431.00J 

1.692 
1.110 

110.3)9 
109..194 

112.0)1 
110.704 

The following table provides changes in accrctablc yield for all acquired loan.s accounted for under ASC 
3 I 0-20: 

DoHar:1 m 11wusaftils 

lialani;c at bcg1nnmg of pcnod 
Acquisoions 
Ac,re,ion 
B.:i.lan1::e Ill end of pmoJ 

l>eumbuJl,:Z019 Dcccmbt'r-31.2018 
S 145 .S 

67J 1.703 
(415) (958) 
l,OOJ ~S ___ ~74~S 

Non-accrctab\c yield on purchased credit impaired loans was S40 I thousand and $463 thousand at 
December 3 I. 2019 and 2018. respectively. 

The Company makes loans to customcrS located primarily within \Vicomico and Worcc~tcr Counties, 
Maryland. Sussex County. Delaware. Camden and Burlington Counties. New Jersey. and Fredericksburg. Virginia. A 
substantial portion of its loan portfolio consists of residential and c.ommcrcial real estate mortgages. The ability of the 
Company's deb1ors to honor their contracts is dcpendcm upon the real estate and general economic conditions in these 
areas. 

Included in the amounts listed above arc loans receivable from directors. principal officers. and s1ockholders of 
S 17.9 million and S5.2 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018. respectively. During 2019 and 2018 loan additions 
to1a\ed SI 7.1 million and SI 20 1housand. respectively. Of this amount. St 1.2 million was due 10 the existing related 
party loans on Partners books that the Company assumed during 1he share exchange. During 2019 and 2018 repayments 
totaled S3.2 million and S2.2 million. respectively. There ,..,ere also loan balances of SI .2 million tha1 were receivable 
from prior directors who retired effective at the end of 2018. These loans were made in the ordinary course of business 
on substantially the same terms and conditions as those prevailing al the same lime for comparable transactions "'~th 
other customers. including interest rates and collateral. They do not involve more than nom1al risk of collectability o r 
present other unfavorable terms. 

The Company had no commitmems to loan additional funds to 1he borrowers of restructured, impaired. or 
non-accrual loans as of December 3 1, 2019. 



 33 

otc 4. Premise.s, Equipmen t and Depreciation 

A summary of premises and equipment, a t cost~ and accumulated depreciation is as follows: 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Total premises and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Net premises and equipment 

~ 
S 2,9 17 

12,106 
14,360 
29,383 
15,678 

S 13,705 

2018 

S 2,753 
8,724 

12.841 

~ 
14.270 

S 10,048 

Depreciation expense totaled S 1.2 million and S925 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2019, and 
2018, respectively. 

Note 5. Income Taxes 

Components of income tax expense for the years ended December 3 1. 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 

Current 
Federal 
State 

T ornl current 
Deferred income tax (liabilities) benefits: 

Federal 
State 

Total deferred 
Income tax expense 

S 62 S 64 
954 8 12 
~ -----irn; 

1,509 
______ill_ 
____!,ill_ 

!......1ill. 

1,587 
(104) 

~ 
S 2.359 

The change in deferred taxes for the year ended December 31, 2019 docs not equal deferred lax expense in the 
amount of appl'oximately S 1. I million as a result of purchase accounting related to the Panners acquisit ion. 

A rec-0nciliation of tax computed at the federal statutory income tax rate of 2 1% to the ac.nml expense for 
the year ended December 3 1, 2019 and 2018 is as follows: 

Tax at Fedc-ral statutory income tax rate 
Tax effect of: 

Tax exempt income 
Other 

State income taxes, net of Federal tax bene.fil 
[ncome tax expense 

20 19 21)18 

S 1,790 ~ 

(146) (89) 
149 242 

~ _____lli_ 

Ll:iill.. Ll1.?.2. 
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Income 1axes included in the balance sheets are as follows: 

Deferred income cax assets: 
Allowance for credit losses and unfunded commi1ments 
Ne1 operating loss carryfonvard 
Accumulated amoni2a1ion on intangibles 
lmp::tinncnt loss on investment securities 
Net losses on other real estate owned 
Stock option expense 
Discou111s on acquired loans 
Other real esrnte owned valuation 
Other 

Valuation allowance 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Accumulated depreciation 
Accumulated ainor1i2ation on core deposit intangible 
Deferred gain 
Net depreciation on securities available for sale 
Purchase discounL'I 
Accumulated securities discount accretion 

Nel deferred income tax asset 

____w!..._ ---1!!.!!..._ 

s 1,841 $ 1,169 
275 1,949 
28 36 

27 
1, 132 1. 146 

108 25 
1,539 354 

406 432 
__ 1_8_1 21 

5,5 10 ~ 
___Jill,l 
~ ~ 

72 170 
840 286 
134 136 
249 (263) 
36 
65 I 

1.396 ~ 
S 3,839 $ 4.829 

The Company has a state net operating loss of approximated S:3.9 million. Losses incurred through December 
31. 2017 have a 20 year life. Losses incurred in 2018 and aficr do not expire. Managcmcnl has de1ennined that this 
deferred tax asset will no1 be realizable in the future. and accordingly has recorded a valuation allowance ofS275 
thousand, the full value of the slate net operating loss carryforward included in 1he deferred mx asset. Except for state 
net operating los.ses at the holding company, management has dc1cnnincd that no other valuatiQn allowance is required 
as it is more likely than not that the other deferred iax assets will be fully realizable in che future. 

At December 3 1, 2019 and 20 18, management believes there arc no unccnain tax positions under ASC Topic 
740 Income Taxes. The Bank's Federal and state income tax l'eturns are subjec1 to examination by che IRS and/or state 
tax authorities. The tax years that remain subject to examination by the Federal government and the State of Maryland 
include the tax years ended December 3 1, 2016 and aft.er. The tax years that remain subjecl to examination by the State 
of New Jersey include the tax years ended December 31. 2015 and after. The tax years that remain subject to 
examination by the State of Virginia include 1he tax years ended December 31, 2016 and after. The company's policy is 
to record interest and penalty as a component of tax expense 

Note 6. Oc1,osits 

T ime deposits and their remaining maturities at December 3 1. 2019 are as follows: 

2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 and thereafter 
Total time deposits 

s 

s 

240.424 
73.261 
88.081 
33,005 
10.424 

33 
445.228 
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ln1cres1 expense on deposits fonhe years ended December 3 I. 2019 and 2018 is as follows: 

NOW 
Money market 
Savings 
Time~$ 100,000 or more 
Other time 

2019 

S2i7 
243 
108 

2,901 
2,966 

$ 6,435 

2018 
$118 

202 
96 

1,692 
1,682 

$ 3,790 

Deposit ba lances of officers and dircc1ors and their affilia1ed intercs1s to1alcd approximate ly $12.0 million and 
S7 .0 million as of December 31 , 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Deposit accounts in an overdraft position totaled approximately SI 34 thousand and S2SS thousand as of 
December 3 1, 2019 and 2018, respec1ively. 

Some of the Company's CD dcposi1s arc Lhrough participation in the Ccrti ficatc of Dcposi1 Account Registry 
Service (CDARS). These deposits 101aled $4.3 million and $2.1 million al December 31, 2019 and 2018, respcclively. 

Note 7. Other Income 

Olhcr income consists of the folloY.~ng: 

Investment fees and commissions 
Safe deposit box rentals 
Mortgage division fees 
Visa debit income 
Other nonain1crc:st income 

Note 8. Credit Facilities 

~ 
$ 23 

4 7 
608 
935 

_____!,fil_ 

~ 

2018 

~ 
45 

179 
872 
638 

$ 1.798 

The Company owns capital stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB) as a condition for $308.6 
million in convertible advance credit facilities from the FHLB. As of December 31, 2019. 1he Company had remaining 
crcdil availabilily ofS2 I l.7 million underihcsc focililies. 

FH LB advances included in the balance sheet as of December 31. 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 
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Long-tenn advances (>('ctiuber J I 2019 
Dollars in T11omo,uis Ou1standint:,; Balance Interest Rate Maturitv D:uc lmc:resiPa~cnt 

Fi~ed rnle hybrid 15,000 2.09 % June 2020 fixed, paid monthly 
Fixed rmc hybrid 5,000 3.04 % . 1o"·ember 2020 fixed, paid monthly 
Fixed rnte hybrid 5,000 2.91 % 1ovember 2020 fixed, p:lid qu:-trte rly 
Fixed rate hybrid 6,000 2.44 % Apri.12021 Fixed, paid quarterly 
Convenible* 10,000 2.68 'Yo May 2021 fixed, paid quarccrly 
Fixed rate hybrid 5,000 3.15 % Oc101><r 2022 Fixed, paid qoartcrly 
Princ ipal reducing crcdi1 1,393 I.62 % March 2023 F'ixed, paid quarterly 
Princ ipal reducing credit 1,437 I.99 % Morch 2026 fixed1 paid quarterly 
Total long-term advances 48.830 

Shon-term ad,rances December J I. 2019 
/)QJ/t1r~· fo ThOltSuri,Js Ou1su.1.Jin2; Bala.nee ~ Ma1uri1X Dau: lt'ltet"eSI Pa;Qntnl 

Fixed rate 12.000 1.73 % January 2020 Fixed, at inacurity 
Fixed rate 4,500 1.76 % January 2020 Fis.eel, at maturity 
Fixed rate 7.600 1.68 % January 2020 J.:"iJc-d, at maturity 
Fixed rate 7,700 1.68 % January 2020 fixed, at maturity 
Fi~cd nnc 6,000 1.70 % Januan 20·20 fixed, at maturity 
Fi~cd rmc 3,200 1.71 % January 2020 fixed, at maturity 
Fixed nlle 7 000 1.70 % January 2020 fixed, a1 maturity 
Total shon-term advances 48,000 

Long-tcnn advances Dl-ccmbn 3 1. 2018 
[){)J/ursiri ThOlf.#1™4• Outsianding Ralar\CC lmcrc:s:1 Ra1e Ma111rit~ 0.11c lmcrest Paf n\Cllt 

Fixed rate hybrid 15,000 
__ l._5_1 % 

June 2019 Fixed, paid monthly 
Fixed rate hybrid 5,000 3.04 o/o November 2020 Fixed, paid monthly 
Fixed rate hybrid 5,000 2.91 % November 2020 Fixed, paid quarterly 
Convertible•• 10,000 2.68 % May 2021 Fixed, paid quarterly 
Fi~cd rate hybrid 5,000 3.15 % oc,olx:r 2022 Fixed. paid quarterly 
Princ ipal reducing crcdil 1.821 1.62 % Mnrch 2023 Fixed. paid c1uani.:rly 
Principal reducing credil I 668 1.99% Mnrch 2026 Fixed, paid quarterly 
Total long-tenn advances 43,489 

Short-term advances Dcce1nbn JI. 2018 

l)Qllors In T11~1-wmdf Ou15Aanding Balance ~ Malurit): Date lnicrcst Parmc:nt 

Fixed rate 7.000 2.65 % Jariuary20l9 Fixed, m maturity 

Total shon-tenn advances 7.000 

• In May 2018 the Company borrowed an additional S 10.0 million with interest payable quanerly fixed at 
S2.68%, maturing in May 2021. The FHLB has the option of converting the rate on this long-term borrowing to a 
three monlh LI BOR•bascd floating rule in May 2020. 

•• in May 2015, the Company borrowed an additional S 10.0 million with inlerest payable quanerly fixed at 
1.08%, m..ituring in May 2020. The FHLB had the oplion of converting the rnlc on this long-term borrowing to a 
three monlh LIBOR-based floating nue at any lime. In May of20l8 the FHLB exercised the convertible option and the 
Bank paid off the advance. 

In June 2005. 1he Company borrowed SS.O million from the FI-ILB with inlerest payable quarterly fixed at 
3. 7-8% through June 20 I 0. maturing in June 20 l S. The FHLB had the option of convening the rate on this borrowing to a 
three momh LIBOR based Ooating rate in 20 10. howe.ver it chose not to do so. therefore the rate on this borrowing 



 37 

would have remained al 3. 78% until maturity. During 2012, this borrowing was restructured lo a three month LIBOR 
based floating rale for the fir.st two years, then adjusting to 1.83% until maturity in December 2018. Due to a prepayment 
penalty of$405 thousand, which was amortized 10 final maturity as an adjustment to interest expense, the effective rate 
was the lhrc..-c month LIBOR based lloating rate plus 1.35% for the first two years, adjusting to 3. l8o/o un1il maturity. As 
of December 31, 2018 the premium was fully amortized. 

In September 2005, the Company bo1TOwed an additional $5 million with i1uerest payable quarterly fixed at 
4.06% through September 2009, maturing in September 2015. The FHLB had the option of converting the rare on this 
borrowing 10 a three month LIBOR based noating rate in 2009, however it chose not to do so, therefore the rate on this 
bonowing would have remained at 4.06% unt il maturity. During 2012, this borrowing was restructured to a three month 
UBOR based floating ra1e for the first rwo years, then adjusting to 1.83% until maturity in December 2018. Due 10 a 
prepayment penalty ofS500 thousand, which was amortized to final maturity as an adjustment to irucrest expense. the 
effective rate was the three month LIBOR based floating rate plus 1.67% for the fi rSt t wo ycarS. adjusting to 3.50% until 
maturity. As of December 31, 2018 the premium was fully a mortized. 

In September 2006. the Company borrowed an additional $5 million with i11terest payable quarterly fixed at 
4.57% through September 201 1, maturing in September 2016. The Hf LB has the option of converting tlie rote on this 
long-term borrowing to a three month LIBOR-bascd floating rate in 201 1, however i1 chose not to do so, therefore the 
rnte on this borrov.-ing would have remained at 4.57% until maturity. During 2012, th is borrowing was restructured to a 
three month UBOR based floating rate for the fi rst two years, then adjusting to 1.83% until marurity in December 2018. 
Due to a prepayment penalty of $740 thousand, which was amortized to flnal matHrity as an adjuslment to interest 
expense, the effective rate was the three month LIBO R based floating rate p lus 2.47% for the first two yearS, adjusting to 
4 .30% until maturity. As of December 31 , 2018 the premium wa..'i fu lly a mortized. 

Average short-term bo1TOwing under FHLB approximated $9.3 million and SI .4 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018. respectively. 

The Company has pledged a portion of its residen1ial and commercial mortgage loan portfolio as collateral for 
these credit facilities. Principal balances outs tanding on these pledged loans totaled approximately $223.5 million and 
$135.8 million at December 31. 2019 and 2018. respectively. 

In addition to the Fl-lLB credit facility. in October 2015. the Company entered into a subordinated loan 
agreemenl for an aggregate principal amount o f S2.0 million. Interest-only payments arc due q uarterly al 6. 71 % per 
annum, and the outstanding principal balance matures in Octobe r 2025. In January 2018, the Company entered into a 
subordinated loan agreement for an aggregate principal amounl o f $4.5 million to fund the acquisition o f Liberty Bell 
Bank. net of loan cos1s. Interest-only payments are due quarterly at 6.875% per annum, and the outstanding principal 
balance ,narures in April 2028. 

The proceeds of these long-term borrowings were generally used to purchase higher yielding investment 
securities, fund additional loans, redeem prefe.rred stoc.k, or fund acquisitions. Additionally, the Company has secured 
c redit availability ofS5 million and unsecured credit availability of$59 1uillion with various correspondent banks for 
shon-term liquidity needs. if necessary. The secured facility musl be collaterali:zed by spt,--cific securities at 1hc time of 
any usage. At December 3 1, 2019, there were no borrowings outstanding, and securities pledged under this s.cc:ured 
c.redit facility had an a mortized cost and fa ir value of $7 thousand and S8 thous.ands. respectively. At December, 2018 
there were no borrowings outstanding. and securities pledged unde r this credit faci lity had an aLnortized c.ost and fair 
value of$8 thousand and $9 thous.and, respectively. 

T he Company has pledged investment securities available for sale with a combined amortized cost and fa ir 
value of $2.3 million with the FRB to secure Discount Window borrowings at December 31, 2019. There were no 
pledged securities at December 3 1.2018. At December 3 1. 2019 and 2018 there were no outstanding borrowings under 
these facilities. 

The Company provides Johnson Mortgage Company (JMC) a line of credit. In addiiion. JMC has a line of 
c.redit with another financial institution in the amount o f $3.0 million. T he interest rate. is the weekly average of1he one 
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mon1h LI BOR plus 2.250%, rounded 10 1he nearest 0.125% (4.0% a1 December 31, 2019). The ra1e is subjec1 10 change 
the fi rst of every month. Amounts borrowed arc colla1eralizcd by a security interest in the mortgage loans financed 
unde r the line and are payable upon demand. The line of credi1 is set 10 renew or mature on May 31 , 2020. The balance 
outstanding at December 31, 2019 was S576 thousand. Interest expense on the line of c redit v.-·a s $ 14 thousand during 
<he ye,,rended December 31, 2019 

Maturities on long-tcnn dcb1 over 1he next five years and thereafter MC as follows: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 and <hereafter 

Nore 9. Protlt Sharing Plan 

$ 73,659 
16,659 
5,659 

337 
5 16 

Both Delmarva and 1>a11ners have a defined contribUlion 40 I (k) profit sharing plan covering .subslant.ially all 
full-time employees. Under the 40 I (k) provision both banks are curren1ly matching 50% of employee contributiol\s of up 
to 6% o f their compcns..1tion as defined under the plan. Partners also retains a discretionary profit sharing plan in which 
the bank contributes 3% of the employees· pay regardless of whether the employee.s contribute. Additional employer 
co,uribulions are at the discrelion of the Board of Directors. The Company1s comributions to 1his plan totaled S207 
<housand and S169 <housand, for 1he years ended December 31. 2019 and 2018. rcspcc1ively. 

Note 10. L-c.ase Commitment 

The Company adopted ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), on January I, 2019, using a modified-re<rospec1ive 
approach. whereby comparative periods were not resta1ed. No cumulative effect adjustment 10 the opening balance of 
retained earnings wns required. The Company also elected 1he package of practical CXJX.---dicnts pcrmiued under the 
transition guidance within the new standard. which among other things allowed the Company to carry fornrard the 
historical lease classific,ations. Additiona lly, the Company elected the hindsight practical expedient to determine the 
lease 1erm for existing leases. 

The Company leases e ighteen locations for adminislmlivc oflices and branch locations. Sixteen leases \\.'ere 
classified as opcrnting leases ri.nd t\\'O i.1-'i a finance lease. Leases with an initial 1crm o f 12 months or less as well as leases 
with a discounted present value of future cash flows below S2S.OOO are nor recorded on the balance sheer and the related 
lease expense is recognized over lhe lease term. The Cornpany elected to use the practical expcdien1 to not recognize 
shorl•lc rm leases on the consolidated balance sheet and ins tead account for them as cxccutory contrac ts. 

Certa in leases include options 10 renew, with renewal terms that can extend the lease term, typically for five 
years. Lease assets and liabilities include related options that are reasonably certain of being exercised. The Company 
has determined that it will place a limit on exercises of available lease renewal options tha1 would e-xtend the lease term 
up to a maximum o f fifteen years, including the initial tcnn. The de preciable life of leased assets a rc limited by the 
expected lease 1cm1. 

Adoption of this standard resulted in the Company recognizing a right of use asser and a corresponding lease 
liobili<y of$3.6 million on January I. 2019. 

The following tables present information about the Company's leases for the year ended December 31. 2019: 
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Balance Sheol 
Opcraiing Lease Amounts 

Right-of-use asset classified as premises and equipment 
Lease liability classified as other liabilit ies 

finance Lease Amounts 
Right-of-use asset classified as premises and equipment 
Lease liability classified as o ther liabilit ies 

Income S1atemen1 
Ope-rating lease cost c lassified as premises and equipment 
finance lease cost classified as borrowings 

Dollars iii 1110m11ndf 

$ 

$ 

$ 

4,504 
4,797 

1,96 1 
2,355 

511 
25 

Weighted average lease term - Operating Leases (Yrs.) 8.39 
Weighted average lease term - Finance Leases (Yrs.) 14.09 
Weighted average discounl rate - Operating Leases ( I) 2.79 o/e 
Weighted avcra.ge discounl rntc - Finance Leases (I) 2.87 o/e 
Ope-raring outgoing cash nows from operaling leases S 516 
Operating ou1going cash flows from 11nance leases S 74 
(I) The discount rate was dc,·clopcd by using 1he fixed rate credit advance borrowing rate at the Federal Home Loan 
Bank of Atlanta for a term correlating to the re ma ining life of each lease. Managerne.nt believes this rate closely mirrors 
its incremental borrowing rate for similar terms. 

Minimum lease payments for the next five years and the-reafter. assuming renewal oprions are exercised, are 
approximately as follows: 

Opcraling Leases: 
One year or less 
One to three years 
Three w fi vc years 
Over 5 years 

Total undiscountcd cash flows 
Less: Discount 
Lc-.1sc Liabilities 

finance Leases: 

One year or less 
One to three yems 
Three to five years 

Over 5 years 

Total undiscountcd cash nows 
Less: Discount 

Lease Liabilities 

J)<)/lar,f bt Thousa,,d,t 

785 
1,240 
1, 127 
2 369 
5,521 
(724) 

4,797 

168 

357 

380 

1,988 

2,893 

(538) 

2 355 
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Note 11. Other O perating Expenses 

Other operating expenses include the following: 

Profcssiomll services 
Stationery, pri1u ing and supplies 
Poslage and de livery 
FDIC assessment 
State bank assessment 
Directors tees and expenses 
Marketing 
Corresponde nt bank services 
ATM expenses 
Telephones and mobile devices 
Membership dues a nd fees 
Legal fees 
Audit and related prof'cssional fees 
Insurance 
Bank acquisit ion costs 
Other 

Note 12. Stock Option Plans 

Delma,· Bancorp Stock Option Plan 

2019 
~ 

224 
20S 
3S6 

16 
289 
313 

84 
8S9 
502 
78 

233 
126 
180 
921 

---1.lli.. 
S 71597 

2018 
$ 309 

282 
18 1 
584 

3 
298 
267 
84 

703 
432 

8 1 
273 
112 
178 

1,637 
2,153 

$ 7,577 

T he Company had e mployee and direc1or stock opiion plans and had reserved shares o f s tock for issuance 
thcr~under. Options granted under these plans had a ten-year life with a four-year vesting period that began one year 
uflcr date o f grant. and were exercisable at a price equal to the fa ir value o f the Company's stock on 1hc dale of the grant. 
Each award from all plans was evide nced by an award agreement that specified the option price, the duration o f the 
option. the number o f shares to which the option penains. and such other provisions as the grantor determines. The plan 
lerm ended in 2014, therefore no new options can be gran1ed. During 2018 :5,000 s tock options were exe rcised from lhe 
Delmar Bancorp s1ock option plan at an exerc ise price o f $ 1.98. No slock options were exercised during 2019 . All 
remaining options expired during 2019. 

EmploYrtS OlrttlUr-S 
A ,·er11.ge A ~·en:tge 

Shares ~ ~ Sbart>s ~ A mou111 

December 31, 2019 13,895 ~ $ 125,750 4,514 ~ $ 40,852 

liberty Bell Stock Option Plan 

In 2004 Liberty Bell Bank adopted the 2004 Incent ive Stock Option Plan and the 2004 Non-Qua lified Stock 
Option Plan, which were s1ock•based incentive compensa t ion plans (the Liberty Plans). In Febnaary 2014 1he Libeny 
Plans expired pursuant to their terms. Op1ions under these plans had a LO year life and vested over 5 years. Remaining 
options under these plans became fully ves1cd with the signing of the Agreeme nt o f Merger wi1h Delmar Bancorp in 
February 20 l8. In accorda nce with the terms of the Agreement of Merger between Delmar a nd Liberty, the Liberty Plan 
was assumed by De lmar. and the options were converted into and became a n option to purchase a n adj us ted number o f 
shares of the common s tock of Delma r at an adjusted exercise price per share. The number of shares was determined by 
muhip lying 1hc number of shares of Liberty common stock for which the option was exercisable by 1hc number o f shares 
o f Delmar common s tock into which shares of Libc11y common s tock were convertible in the Me rger. which was 0.2857 
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(the ''Conversion Ratio"), rounded to the next lower whole share. The exercise price v.-as determined by dividing the 
exercise price per share of Liberty common stock by the Conversion Ratio, rounded up to the nearest cent. At the 
efTecti\•e t ime of the merger there were 48,225 options outstanding at an exercise price of$ I. I 8. These shares were 
converted to 13,771 options outstanding at an exercise price of $4.14. No options were exercised during 1he year ended 
December 31, 2019. During 2018, 5,062 options were exercised at an exercise price of $4.14. 

Remaining options for 8,709 shares were outstanding as follows: 

£1uelo\"ff'S Ofrtctor.s 
Anra~e An!ra~e 

Shares ~ Amounl Share!i ~ Amount 

December 31, 2019 2,355 ~ S 9,750 6,354 ~ S 26,306 

Virginit, Parh1ers Stock Option Plan 

In 2015 Virginia Partner, Bank adopted the 2015 Stock Option Plan (the "2015 Partner, Plan"), which allowed 
both incentive s tock options and nonqualificd s1ock op1ions to be granted. The exercise price of each s tock op1ion 
equaled the market price of Partners' common stock on the dale of granl and a stock option's maximum term was I 0 
years. Stock options b'fanted in the years ended December 31. 2018 and 2017 vested over 3 years. Partners previous 
stock compensalion plan (the ''2008 Partners Plan'") provided for the brrant of share based awards in the form of incentive 
stock options and nonqualificd stock options to Partners' directors, officers and employees. In April 2015 the 2008 
Panners Phm was terminated and replaced with the 2015 Partners Plan. Stock options outsranding prior to April 2015 
were granted under 1he 2008 Partners Plan and became subject to the provisions of the 2015 Pa1tners Plan. The 2008 
Partners Plan a lso provided for s tock options 10 be granted to seed investors as a reward for the contribmion to 
organiwtional funds which were al risk if Partners' organization had not been successful, Under the 2008 Partners Plan. 
Partners granted stock options to seed investors in 2008, which were fully vested UJ>On the date of the grant. 

As a resul1 of the Share Exchange, each stock op1ion (the "Panners Options"), whether vested or unvested, 
issued and oulStanding immediately prior to the effective time under the 2008 Partners Plan or the 20 I 5 Pmtners Plan 
and together with the 2008 Partners Plan. (the "Partners Stock Plans''). immediately I 00% vested. 10 the extent not 
a lready vested. and converted into and became stock op1ions to purchase Delmar common stock. In addi1ion, Delmar 
assumed each Parlners Stock Plan. and assumed each Parlners Option in accordance wi1h the 1erms and conditions of the 
Partners Stock Plan pursuam IO which it was issued. As such, Panncrs Op1ions to acquire 149.200 shares of Partner's 
common s1ock at a weighted average exercise price of S 10.52 per share were converted into s tock options 10 acquire 
256t294 shares of Delmar common stock al a weighed average exercise price of S6.13 per share. The number of shares 
\1,,·as determined by multiplying the number of shares of Partncn; common stock for which the option was exercisable by 
the number of shares o f Delmar common stock into which shares of Partners common stock were convertible in the 
Share Exchange, which was I. 7179 (the "Conversion Ratio"), rounded 10 the next lower whole share. The exercise price 
was determined by d ividing the exercise price per share of Partners common stock by the Conversion Ratio, rounded up 
to lhc nearest cent. 

A summary of s tock option trnnsactions for 2019 is as follows: 
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Outstanding at beginning of ye.ar 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 
Outstanding at end of ye.ar 

Options exercisable at December 31, 2019 

Weighted average fair value of options granted du.ring the year S 

Shares 
$ 

256,294 
(8,589) 

~ $ 

247,705 $ 

1.37 

December 31, 2019 
Weighted 

We ighted A vcrage 

Average Remaining 
Exercise Coiurnctual lnt.rinsic 

~ ____!d!L_ ~ 

6. 13 3.81 
5.83 

----i.!!. ---1lL $ ..illfil 
6. 14 

The intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the amount by which the current rna rkct value of 
the underlying slock options exceeds the exercise price) 1hat would have been received by the holders had they exercised 
their stock options on Dcce111ber 3 1. 2019. 

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Olack-Scholes option-pricing model 
wi1h the following weighted-average assump1ions: 

Dividend yield 
Expected life 
Expected volatility 
Rjsk-free interest rate 

December 31, 2019 
1.34 % 
1.91 
4.34 °/4, 
1.60 11/0 

·rhe expected volatility is based on .Delmar·s recent historical volatility. The risk-free in1erest rates for periods 
within the contractual life o f the awards arc based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect al the time o f the grant. The 
expected lifo is based on 1he contractual life and vesting period for the rc~-;pcctivc stock option. The d ividend yield 
assumption is based on Delmar's expecu:u ion o f d ividend payouts. 

As stated in Note I. the Company fol lows ASCTopic 718-10 which requires thm stock-based compensation to 
employees and directors be rocognizcd as compensation cost in the income s tatement based on their fair values on the 
measurement date, which. for the Comp..1ny, is the date of the gr.mt. /\II stock option expenses had been fully recognized 
prior to 2019. 

Nole 13. Res1ric1ed Stock Plan 

The Company has an employee and dircc1or restricted s1ock plan and has rescrvc<l 405.805 shares ofs1ock for 
issuance I hereunder. The Company has adopted the Plan, pursuant to which employee and d ireclors o f the Company may 
acquire shares o f common stock. The Plan was adopted by the. Company's Board of Direcrors in April 2014. and, subject 
to the right of the Board ofDil'e.ctors to tenninotc the Plan at any 1ime. tertninaces on June 30. 2018. The tennination of 
the Plan. either nt the scheduled tennination date or before such date. will not affect any awa rd issued prior to 
tcrmin::uion. During 2017 and 2018 the Company awarded 5,000 and 9,000 .shares. respectively, to individual employees 
based on certain employment criteria. These shares will vest over two or three years, based on the specific cmployme111 
agreement. Each award from the plan is evidenced by an award agreement that specifies the vesting period of the 
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restricted stock plan. the number of shares to which the award pertains, and suc-h other provisions as the grant.or 
determines. 

As of December 31, 2019 non-vested restricted stock awards totaling 6,000 were outstanding as follows: 

Non vested Awards December 31 , 2018 
Vested in 2019 
No,wested Awards December 31, 2019 

Employees 

Shares 
9,000 

___ill!Qfil 
~ 

Weighted 
Average 

Fair Value 
S 7.30 

7.30 
S 7.30 

As stated in Note I , the Company follows ASC Topic 718-IO which requires that restricted stock•hased 
compensation to employees and directors be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement based on their fair 
values on the measurement date. The fair value of restricted stock granted in 2018 and 2019 is equal 10 the underlying 
fair value of the stock. As a resull of applying the provisions of ASC Topic 718-10, during 20 18 the Company 
recognized restricted s1oek-based compensation expense of $36 thousand, or $26 thousand net of tax, related to the 2014 
restricted stock awards. During 2019 the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of$22 thousand, or 
S 16 thousand net of ta.-.;., related to the 2014 restricted stock a"•·ards. Unrecognized res1ric1ed stock.based compensation 
expense related to 2014 restricted stock awards totaled approximately $26 thousand at December 3 l, 20 I 9. The 
re,naining pel'iod over ,,vhich this unrecognized expense is expected to be recognized is approximately one year. 
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Note 14. Earnings Per Share 

Diluted eaniings (loss) per share are calculated as follows: 

Y~u End~d Orttmbt r- 31. 
(DQJlars In 1/iou.Jtmds. e.."tCt>pt />et' a.hare dara} 2019 
Net income s 5,893 
Net income attributable 10 noncon1rolling interest (10) 
Net income applicable to basic earnings per common share 5,883 
Weigh1ed average shares outstanding 10,925 

0.538 Basic earnings per share S _____ _ 
Effect of dilutive securiries: 

Weighted average shares ourstanding under options Delmar 2004 
stock option plan ( I) 
Weighted average exercise price per share S 
Assumed proceeds on exercise S 
A vcrage market value per share S 
Weighted average shares outstanding under oplions Liberty 2004 
s1ock op1ion plan 
Weighted average exercise price per share $ 
Assumed proceeds on exercise $ 
Average market value per share $ 
Less: Treasury stock purchased "ri1h assumed proceeds from exercise 
Weighted average shares ourstanding under options Partners 20 I 5 
stock op1ion plan 

Weighted average exercise price per share S 
Assumed proceeds on exercise S 
Average market value per share S 
Less: Treasury s1ock purchased v.>i1h assumed l)rocc.eds from 

exercise 
Weighted ,weroge shares outstanding under restricted stock plans (2) 

Dilulcd weighted average shares and common stock (.."quivalcnis 

7 
9.05 

63 
7.46 

12 
3.98 

48 
7.46 

6 

32 
6. 14 
196 

7.00 

26 
9 

10946 
0.537 Diluted earnings per share _s _____ _ 

s 

s 

s 
s 
s 

s 
s 
s 

(1) Options were excluded from the calculation of dilutive earnings per share because they arc an1i-dilutive. 

(2) Includes ,,cs1cd shares not yet issued and no,wcstcd shares as of December 31. 

Note 15. Regulatory Capital Requirements 

2018 

5,482 

5,482 
9,691 
0.566 

27 
9.05 
244 
7.47 

12 
3.98 

48 
7.47 

6 

10 
9 707 
0.565 

The Com1:>any and the Banks are subject to various regulatory c.apita l requirements administered by Federal 
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate cenain mandatory- and possibly additional 
discretionary-actions by regulators 1hat. if undertaken. c-0uld have a direct material effect on 1he Banks' linancial 
stmements. Under capical adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompl corrective action. the Company 
and the Banks must meet specific capic-al adequacy guidelines that involve quantita1ive measures of the Banks' assets. 
liabilities. and cenain off-balance-sheet ilems as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Banks' capital 
amoums and classifications are also subject to qualitativejudgniems by the regulators about components. risk weighcing. 
and 01her factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation 10 ensure capital adequacy require rhe Company and the Banks 
to maintain minimum amounts and raiios (as defined in the regula1ions) oflotal and Tier I capital 10 risk-weighted assets, 
Tier I caphal to average assets. and beginniog in 2015, common equiryTier I c-apiml 10 risk-weiglued assets. 
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Management believes as of December 31. 2018 that the Company and the Danks meet all capital adequacy requirements 
lo which they are subjecl. 

As of December 31.2018. the most recent noti l1co.1ion from the FDIC categorized the Banks as well capi1alizcd 
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized the Banks must 
mainrnin minimum tou,I risk-based.1.ier I risk-based, Tier I leverage and, beginning in 2015, common equity Tier 1 
risk-based rntios. There a rc no condi1ions or events since that notification 1hat management believes have changed the 
Banks' categories. 

The Common Equity Tier I (beginning in 2015). Tier I and Total capital ratios arc calculated by dividing the 
respective capita l amounts by risk•wcightcd assets. Risk•wcighlcd assets arc calculated based on rcgula1ory requirements 
and include total assets, with c-enain exclusions. allocaled by risk weight category. and cer1ain olTwbalance-sheet items. 
among other things. The leverage ratio is calculated by dividing T ier I e.:1pital by adjusted quarterly avcmgc tota l assets. 
which exclude goodwill and other intongible assets. among other things. 

When fully phased in on January I, 2019, the Basel Il l Capital Rules will require the Banks and Bancorp 10 
mainrnin (l) a minimum ratio ofCornrnon Equity Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets ofat least 4.5%, plus fl 2.5% 
"capital conservalion buflbr" (which is added to the 4.5¾ Common Equity Tier I capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, 
effectively resulting in a minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier I capital to risk-weighted asse,s ofat least 7.0% upon 
full implementation), (ii) a minimum ratio o f Tier I capital to risk-weighted asse ts ofat least 6 .0%, plus 1he capila l 
conservation bu lier (which is added to the 6.0% Tier I capital ratio as that buffer is phased in. effectively resulting in a 
minimum T ier I capirnl ratio of8.S% upon full implementation), (iii) a minimum ralio of Tota l capital (that is. Tier I p lus 
Tier 2) to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0%1, plus the c,1pital conservation bulTcr (which is ndded lo the 8.0% total 
capita l ratio as- thal buffer is phased in, effectively re.suiting in a minimum tolal capital ratio of 10.5% upon full 
implementation) and (iv) a minimum leverage rotio of 4.0%. calculated as the ratio ofTier I capital to average quarterly 
asse1s. 

The implementation of the capital conservation buffer began on January I , 2016 at the 0.625% level and be 
phased in over o four-year period (increasing by dull amount on each subsequent January I , unti l it reaches 2.5% on 
January I, 2019). The Basel Ill Capital Rules also pro,·idc ti:Jra "countercyclical capital buffer'' that is applicable to only 
certaln covered institutions and does 1101 have any current applicability to the Banks or Bancorp. The capit;1I 
conservation bu ffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress and, as detailed above, effectively 
increases the minimum required risk-wcigh1cd capiral rntios. Da,lking inslitutions with a rario of Common Equity T ier I 
capita l to risk .. wcightcd assels be low the effective min imum (45% plus the capital oon.scrv::i.tion buffer and, if applicable. 
the c.ountcrcyclical capital buffer) will face const rain1s on dividends. equity repurchases and co1npensation based on the 
amount of the shortfall. 
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T he fol lov,.ring table presents actual and required capital ratios as of December 31, 20 19 and 2018 for the Banks 
and Bancorp under the Basel III Capital Rules. The minimum required capital a mounts prese.nted include the minimum 
required capital levels as of December 31, 20 18 based on the phase-in provisions of the Basel Ill Capital Rules and the 
minimum required capilal levels as of January It 20 19 when the Basel III Capital Rules have been fully phased-in. 
Capilal levels required lo be considered well capitalized are based upon prompt correclive aclion regulations, as 
amended to relle<:t the changes under the Basel Ill Capital Rules. A comparison of the Company's and the Banks' capita l 
amounts and ratios as o f December 3 1, 2019 and 2018 with the. minimum requirements are presented below. 

Tolk 
Well Cap1U1.lizcd 

forCapi1al Under f'n:m1p1 
Adequ.acy Corn.-..;,i,,c Ac1io11 

lit Thm,sa,"13 Ac1u:1l ru!Jmcs Pro\•isions 
Aroounl Ra1io Amouru Ratio ,\moon• ~1k) 

As of December 31, 2019 
Total Capital Ratio 

(fo Risk Weighted Assets) 
Dchnnr Bancorp S 131,443 13.1 % S 105,140 10.5 •;. S NIA 
The Bank of Delmarva 79,080 12.7 % 65,132 10.5 '¼ 62,030 10.0 % 
Virginia 1>artne-rs Dank 47.122 12.5 \1/o 39,676 10.5 '¼ 37,787 10.0 % 

Tier I Capital Ratio 
(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 117,374 11.7 °/4, 85,113 8.5 •;. NIA 
The Bank of Delmarva 71,752 11.6 °/4, 52,726 8.S % 49.624 8.0 % 
Virginia 1>artners Oank 46,881 12.4 % 32,119 8.S % 30,230 8.0 % 

Common Equity Tier I Ratio 
(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 117,374 11.7 1% 70,224 7.0 •;. NIA 
T he Bank of Delmarva 7 1,752 11.6% 43,421 7.0 •;. 40,320 6.5 % 
Virginia Parrners Oank 46,881 12.4 % 26,451 7.0 % 24,562 6.5 1% 

Tier I Leverage Ratio 
(To Average As.sets) 
Delmar Bancorp 117,374 11.9 1% 39,331 4.0 •1. NIA 
T he Bank of Dclmarvn 71,752 9.1 %, 3 1,520 4.0 •;. 39,399 5.0 % 
Virginia Parrncrs Bank 46,881 10.4 % 18,093 4.0 °/4 22,616 5.0 % 

As of December 3 1, 20 18 
Total Capital Ratio 

(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp s 72.344 11.8% s 60.466 9,9 % s NIA 
The Bank of De hna_rva 7 1.498 11.7% 60.425 9.9 % 61,190 10.0% 

Tier I Capital Ratio 
(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 58,516 9.6% 48,220 7.9 % NIA 
T he Bank of Delmarva 64.170 10.5 % 48.187 7,9 % 48.952 8.0% 

Common Equity Tier I Ratio 
(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 58,516 9.6% 39.035 6.4 % NIA 
T he Bank of Delmarva 64,170 10.5 % 39.009 6.4 % 39.774 6.5 % 

Tier I Leverage Ratio 
(To Average Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 58,516 8.0% 29.377 4.0 % NIA 
T he Bank of Delmarva 64,170 8.7 % 29,377 4.0 % 36.721 5.0% 
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Banking regulations also limit 1he amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of the 
Company's and the Ban.ks' regulatory agencies. Regulatory a pproval is required to pay dividends. which exceed the 
Company's and the Ban.ks' net profits for the current year plus its retained net profits for the preceding two years. 

Note 16. Fair Values of Financial Jnstr-uments 

T he following ta ble shows the estimated fair value and 1hc related carrying values o ( thc Company's financial 
instruments at December 31, 2019 and 2018. Items that are not fina ncial instruments are not included. Amounts are 
shown in thousands (000). 

l>e<"ember J I, December J I, 
Dollars 11re in (f1ousa11ds 2019 1018 

Eslimated Estimated 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value ~ ~ 

f inancial assets: 
Cash and due from banks $ 36,295 $ 36,295 $ 24,347 s 24.347 
Interest bearing deposits 27,586 27,586 4 ,093 4 ,093 
Federal funds sold 31,230 31,230 1,254 1,254 
Securities: 

A vailablc for sa le 106,256 I 06,256 5 1,300 5 1,300 
Loans, net of a llowance for credit losses 990,239 976,636 625,513 604,290 
Accrued imerest receivable 3, 138 3, 138 2,103 2,103 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 5,180 5,180 2,652 2,652 
Atlantic Ccntrnl Bankers stock 131 131 131 131 
Other investments 2,838 2,838 1,537 1,537 

f inancial liabili1ies: 
Deposits $ 1,006,781 $ 1,008,842 S 6 14.926 s 570.509 
Accrued interest payable 572 572 392 392 
FHLB advances, notes payable, and fina ncing leases 106,270 I 09,260 56,989 56,979 

Unrecognized financial instruments: 
Commitments to extend credit $ 184,376 $ 184,376 s 114,395 s 114,395 
Standby letters of credit 4,045 4,045 3,276 3,276 

For purposes of the above disclosures of estimated fair value. the following assumptions were used. 

Cash and cash equh,alent.s: 

T he estimated fair value for cash and due from banks, interest-bearing de posits in other banks, and Fedeml 
funds purchased is considered to approximate cost because of their short-term nature. 

Investment securities: 

Estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices for actual or s imilar insrruments or estimated using 
d iscoumcd cash flows. T he d iscounts used arc cs1imatcd using comparable market rates for similar 1ypcs of instmmcnl's 
adjusted to be. commensurate with the audit 1i.,;k, overhead costs, and optionality of such investme nts. See Note 17 for 
further discussion. 

Lo:tns: 

The eslimmed fair value for certain homogeneous categories of loans. such as residen1ial mortgages, is based on 
the quoted m.""'1.rkct price for securities backed by similar loans~ adjusted for d ifferences in loan characteristics. The 
estimated fai r value of other loans is de termined by d iscounting future cash flows using c urrent rates at which similar 
loans would be made to borrowers with s imHar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. 



 48 

Deposics: 

The estimated fair value of deposits with no s tated maturity. such as nonimerest-bearing demand deposits, 
savings, NOW accounts and money market accounts, is equal 10 the amount payable on demand at the reporting date 
( that is, their carrying amount'i). The fair value of certificates o f deposit is based on the rates currcn1ly offered for 
deposits of s imilar maturities and tL'iing a discounted cash now analysis. The fa ir value estimates do not include. the 
benefit that resulL'i from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds 
in the market. 

Rnrrmvings: 

The fair value of long~term fixed rate borrowings is es1jmated by discounting futt1re cash flows using current 
inte-rest rates cun-emly offered for similar financial ins1rurne111s. 

Unrecognized financial instruments: 

The fair value of unrecognized financial instruntcn1s would be estimated using the fC1..--s currently charged to 
enter into si,nilar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agrocmcn1s. the cumnl in1ercs1 rates. and 
the present creditworthiness of the customers. 

Other assets a nd Uabi.litics: 

O ther assets and liabilities of the Comp.any that arc not defined as financial instmmcnts arc not included in the 
above d i~losurcs. such as property and equipment. Also. non•fin::rneial instruments typically not rceohmizcd in the 
financial statements nevcrthelc-.ss may have value but arc not included in the above disclmmrcs. These include, among 
other items. the estimated earnings power of core deposit accounts, the trained work force, customer good1,1,<il\, a nd 
s imilar items. 

The following table presents 1he carrying amount, fair value. and placement in 1he fair value hierarchy of1hc 
Company's financial instruments not disclosed elsewhere as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. This cable excludes 
financial instnnnems for which the carrying amounl approximates fair value. 

Dollars a.~ in 1hm11;1111J.f t,·air V11lut- l·lir-nirchl' 

Car-ryh1g Fair 
Amo1,111t V:alue l...eHI I t..e,·t l 2 ~ 

December 31, 2019 
Financial assets: 

Loans, net $ 990,239 s 976,636 s S 976,636 
Financial liabilities: 

In1crcst•bcaring deposits s 745,150 $ 747,211 s 747,211 s 
FHlB advances. notes payable. and 
financing leases 106,270 109,260 109,260 

December 31. 2018 
Financial assets: 

Loans. ne1 625513 s 604,290 s s S 604,290 
Financial liabilities: 

Interest bearing deposits 429,450 s 393.813 393.813 s 
FHlB advances and notes payable 56,989 56.979 56,979 
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Note 17. Fair V;llue Measurements 

Effective January l , 2008, the Company adopted ASC 820· 10 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which 
pro\•ides a frame.work for measuring and disclosing fair value under generally accepted accou1Jting principles. ASC 
Topic 820 requires disclosures about 1hc fair value of assets and liabilicies recognized in the balance sheet in periods 
subsequent to initial recognition. whether the measurements are made on a recurring basis (for example, 
available-for-sale investments securities) or on a nonrecurring basis (for example, impaired loans). 

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price tha1 would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
benveen market participants on the-measureme-nt date. ASC Topic 820 a lso establishes a fair value hierarchy ,vhich 
requires an entity to maximize the use o f observable inputs and minjmize the use-of unobservable inputs when 
measuring fa ir va lue. The s tandard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fai r value 

Fair Vahle l-/ierard1y 

Level ).-Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabililies 

Level 2--0thcr significant observable inputs (including quoted prices in ac tive markers for s imilar 
assets or liabilities) 

Level 3-Significant unobservable inputs (including the Bank's own assumptions in determining the 
fair value of assets or liabilities) 

In de1ennining the appropriate levels, the Company perfom1s a detailed analysis of assets and liabilities that are 
subject to A.SC Topic 820. 

The following table presents fair value measurements on a recurring basis as of December 3 1, 2019 and 2018: 

f air 
Dollars are in 1ho11sa11ds ~ Level 2 Level 3 --Y!!!!.L 
December 31 , 2019 
Securities available for sale: 

Obligations of U.S. Governme nt agencies $ $ 10,3 12 $ 10,3 12 
Obligations of S tates and political subdivisions 34,558 34,558 
Mortgage-backed securities 56,42 1 56,42 1 
Equity securities ~ ~ 

Total se.curit ies available for .sale s ___ ~ s ___ ~ 
December 31, 2018 
Securilies available for sale: 

Obligat ions of U.S. Govemme nt agencies s $ 9,420 s 9,420 
Obligations of States and political subdivisions 21,096 21,096 
Mortgage-backed securities 19,404 19,404 
Equity securities 1,380 1,380 

Total securit ies ava ilable for sa le s $ 51,300 s $ 51,300 

Securities available-for-sale al'e based on quoted market prices, where available. If quored market prices are not 
available, fair values arc based on quoted market prices of comparable ins truments, which arc considered level 2 inputs. 
For these sec-uritics, management obta ins fa ir value measurements from an indcpe nde.nt pricing service. 



 50 

The Company may also be required. from time 10 time. to measure certain other financial and non-financial 
assets and liabili1ies at fair value on a non-rc-curring basis in accordance wi1h GAAP. The following rablc presents all 
fair value rneasuremems on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2019 and 2018: 

Do/fars are i,i thousands 
December 31 , 2019 
J mpaired loans 
OREO 

Total 
December 31 , 2018 
Impaired loans 
OREO 

Total 

Measured on a Non-Recurring Basis: 

Financial Asse1s and Liabilities 

Le,•el 1 Lew12 _ $ ___ _s ___ 

___bill_ 
_s ___ L1il1. 
$ s 

3.660 
_s __ S 3,660 

f -lir 
Level 3 Val ue 

S 19,493 S 19,493 

S 19,493 
___bill_ 
Ll.!.2l!. 

s 26.640 s 26.640 
3,660 

~ $ 30.300 

The Company is predominantly a cash flow lender with real estate serving as collateral on a majority of loans. 
Loans which are deemed to be impaired financial assets are primarily valued on a nonrecurring basis at the fa ir values of 
the underlying real estate collateral. The Company determines such fair values from independent appraisals. which 
mana1;ement considers level 3 inputs. 

Non Financial Assecs and Non Financial Liabilit ies 

The Company has no non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis . 
Ce11ain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities typically measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis: include 
foreclosed assets (upon initial recognition or subsequent impairment). non-financial assets and non-financial liabili1ies 
measured al foir value in 1he second s1ep ofa goodwill impairmem tes1. and intangible Msets and mher non-financial 
long-lived assets measured at fair value for impairment asscssmenl. 

Foreclose-<! real estate were adjusted m 1heir fair values. resulling in an impairment charge, which was included 
in earnings for the year. Foreclosed real estate. which arc considered to be non-financial assets. have been valued using a 
markc1 approach at the time they arc recorded in O REO, The values were determined using current market prices of 
s imilar real estate asset~, which 1he Company considers to be level 2 inputs. 

Note 18. Goodwill and Intangib le Assets 

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with ASC Topic 350, 
·•1n1angiblcs-Good\.\rill and Other.•· The Comp.:my records the excess of cost acquired entities over 1hc fair value of 
identifiable tangible and intangible assels acquired, less liabilities assumes, as goodwill. The Company amortizes 
acquired intangible assets wi1h dctini1c useful economic lives over their useful economic lives. On a periodic basis. 
management assesses wherher events or changes in circumstances indicalc 1ha1 1he carrying amount of 1hc intangible 
asse1s may be impaired. The Company does 1101 amortize good\,\'111 or ony acquired imangible assets with an indelini1e 
useful economic life, but reviews them for impa irmcn1 on an annual basis. or when c,•cnts or changes in circumstances 
indicate 1h;:1t 1hc carrying amounts may be impaired. The Company has performed 1hc required goodwill impairment test 
and has determine<l lhal goodwill was not impaired as of December 31 , 2019. 

Goodwill: T he Company acquired good,\,jl) in 1hc purchases of Liberty Bell Bank and Virginia Panncrs Bank 
(see Note 20 and 2 1 ). The following table provides changes in goodwill for the periods ended December 31 , 2019 and 
December 3 1.2018: 
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Oollar.s in 1'fwusund:s 

Balance at the beginning of1he period 
Liberty Bell Bank acquis ition 
Virginia Partners Bank acquisition 
Impairment 
Balance at the end of1he period 

o~eml)l!'rJI, 
2019 

S 5,237 

4,154 

S 9,391 

l)etl!'ml)er 31, 
2018 

5,237 

5.237 

Core Deposi1 lmangible: The Company acquired core deposit inlangibles in the acquisitions of Liberty Bell 
Ba,lk and Virginia Partners Bailk. For the core deposit intangible related 10 Liberty, the Company utilizes the double 
declining ba lance method o f a mortization, in which the straight line amortization rate is doubled and applied to the 
remaining unamortized portion of1he inlangible assel. The amortization me1hod changes to the straight line mc1hod of 
amortization when the straight line amortiza1ion amount exceeds the. amoum 1ha1 would be calculated under 1he double 
declining balance method. This core deposit intangible will be amortized over seven years. For the core deposit 
intangible related to Partners, the Company utilizes 1he ~um ofmomhs method and an estima1ed average life of 120 
months. The following table provides changes in the core deposit intangible for the periods ended December 31. 2019 
and December 31, 2018: 

below: 

Dollars ;,, 'l"fwusund:s 

Balance at the beginning of the period 
Liberty Bell Bank acquisition 
Virginia Panners Bank acquisi1ion 
Accumula1cd amortiz..'ition 

Balance <lt the end of the pe riod 

O~tmt>er J I, 
2019 

S 1,069 

2,650 
(346) 

S 3,373 

Otctmbtr J I, 
20!8 

1,489 

(420) 
1,069 

The following table provides the amortization expense lbr the core deposit intangible over the years indicated 

DoJla~ in 1'hm1sa1uls 

2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 

l)ett>ml)er JI. 

2019 

$ 713 
600 
520 
467 

2024 and thereafter I 073 

$ 3,373 

Net Deposi1s Purchased Premium and Discormt: The Company paid a dcposi1 premium in the acquisit ion of 
Liberty Bell Bank and received a deposit discount in the purchase of Virginia Panners Bank. which are included in 1he 
balances of time deposits on lhe ba lance sheets. The premium amount is amortized as a reduction in intercsl expense 
over 1he life of the acquired 1ime deposits and 1he discount is accreted as an increase in interes t expense over 1he life of 
the acquired time deposits. The premium and discount on deposits \Viii both be amonizcd and accreted over 
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appro;itirnately five years. The following table provides changes in the net deposit premium and discounts for the periods 
ended December 31 , 2019 and December 31, 2018: 

Otumbtr 3 1, D«tmbtr 3 1. 
Do/Ian in l 'Jro11:sa11ds 2019 2018 
Balance at the beginning of the period 
Libcny Bell Bank acquisilion 

S 27 S 

Virginia Partners Bank acquisition 
Accumu\a1cd accretion 
Balance at the eod of the period 

108 
(38) 
(20) (81) on _s ___ 21_ 

The following table provides the accretion income for the net deposit discount over the years indicated below: 

DoJJi,r$ Ill Thousands 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 and thereafter 

Note 19. Parent Compan)' financial Information 

l>t-crml>t•r 3 1, 

?019 

s (8) 
( 15) 

(6) 
(2) 

s (31) 

Presented below arc comparative balance sheers of the parcn1 company. Delmar Bancorp, as of December 31, 
20 I 9 and 20 I 8, aod statements of operations and cash Oows for each of the years euded December 3 I , 2019 and 2018. 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Investment in subsidiaries. m equi1y 
Other assets 

Total assets 
LIA Bl LITIF..S 

Other liabilitie.s 
Note payable 

Total Uabi.l.ities 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUIT\' 

BALANCE SHEETS 
December 3 1, 2019 and 2018 

Common stock. par value S.Ol pe-r share. authorized 20.000.000 shares; issued and 
outstanding 2019 17,790,181 and 2018 9,985,321 
Surplus 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. net of defen-ed tax benefits 

Total stockholders' equity 
Total Jiobil.ities and stockholders' equity 

2019 2018 

s 4,105 s 354 
131,397 71,642 

1,753 902 
s 137,255 s 72,898 

s 616 s 4 10 
6,500 6,500 

s 7,116 s 6,910 

S 178 S 100 
87,437 29,470 
4 1,785 37,149 

739 (731) 
130, 139 65,988 

s B1,2ss _s __ 1_2._s_9s_ 
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Stock•based compensation expense 
Interest expense on borrowings 
Merger related expenses 
Other expenses, net 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Year-s Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 

loss before income laxes and equity in undistributed net income of subsid iaries 
Income tax bencfits(I) 
Equity in undistributed ner income of subsidiaries 
Net inco me 

( I) Benefi1s from filing consolidated Federal income tax retum. 

STATEM ENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATI 'G ACTIV ITI E',S: 
Net income 
Adjus tments to reconcile net inco1nc to net cash used in operating activities: 

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 
S tock•based compensation expense 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Increase in other ns...;ets 
Increase in 01her liabilities 

Net cash used in opcrnting activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash paid 10 shareholderS of Libeny Bell Bank 
Cash pa id to shareholders o f Virginia PartncrS Bank 
Net cash used by investing activilies 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Dividends paid 
Proceeds f rom long-1erm borrowings 
'Dividends received from subsidary 
Cash received for 1he exercise of warrarus 
Cash received for the exercise ofs1ock options 
Issuance of restricted s1ock 
Rede mption of pre ferred stock 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Ne-I increase (decrease) in cash 
Cash, be-ginning of year 
Casb, end of year 

Note 20. Liberty Bell Trans:,ctfon 

s 

s 

s 

s 

2019 2018 

s 
(450) (428) 
(900) (248) 

( 1,541) ( 14 1) 
(2,891) (817) 

527 223 
8,247 6,076 
5,883 s 5,482 

20 19 2018 

5,883 5,482 

(8,247) (6,076) 

(851) (326) 
206 205 

(3,009) (715) 

(4,471) 
(2) 
(2) (4,471) 

( 1, 193) (948) 
4 .500 

2,563 1.956 
5,342 

so 31 

6 762 5 539 
3,751 353 

354 I 
4,l05 354 

On March I, 2018, the Company comple1cd ilS acquisition of Liberry Bell Bank ("LBB"), a New Jersey 
chartc-red commercial bank. L88 shareholders received 0.2857 shares of the Company's common stock for each share of 
LOB common st.ock they owned as oftbe effective date of1he acquisi1ion. c-ash consideration of$ l.70 per share or a 
combination thereof. The aggregate consideration paid to LOB shareholders was S 17 .3 million. The results of LB B's 
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operations are included in the Company's consolidated stateme nL'i of income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 
2018 for the period beginning March I, 2018, the date of the acquisition. 

The acquisi1ion ofLBB added markc1 share in Burling1on and Camden Coumies in Sou1hcm New Jersey. The 
acquisition resu\1cd in three new branches in Evesham, Cherry Hill~ and Moorestown. Ne"' JerSCy. 

The acquisition ofLBB was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and, accordingly, assets 
acquirc.d, liabili1ics assumed and cons ide ration paid were recorded at 1he ir estima1cd fai r values as of1he acquisition 
date. The excess consideration paid over the fair value o f net asse1s acquired has been reponed as goodwill in the 
Company's eonsolidaied s tatements of financ ial condition as of December 31 , 2019 and 2018. 

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition o f LBB were recorded at their estimated fair 
values based on management's best estimates using information available al the date o f the acquisit ion a nd are subject to 
adjus tme n1 for up to one year after the closing date of the acquisition. The items most susceptible to adjus1ment are. the 
credit fair value adjus1ments on loans. core deposit intangible and the deferred income tax assets resulting from the 
acquisition. 

In connection with the acquisition, the consideration pa id and the fa ir value of idenlifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed as of1he date o f acquisition are summarized in the following table-: 

Ooflur..· ;,, Thuu~·unds 

Considc mtion pa id: 
Ca,h 
Common s tock issued in acquisition 

Total consideralion paid 
Assets ac.quired: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities 
Investments in correspondent bank s tock 
Loans 
Premises and cquipmen1 
Othe r real estate owned 
Accrued interest receivable 
Core deposit inuingible 
Deferred tax assc1 
Other assets 

Tola\ as5ets acquired 
Liabilities assumed: 

Deposits 
Other liabilities 

Tornl liabilities assumed 
Net assets acquired 
Goodwill recorded in acquisition 

F.~tlma1ed hlr 
Valueuor 

Marth I, 2018 

s 4,471 
12,798 
17,270 

11.83 I 
7,605 

180 
121.674 

2,148 
946 
358 

1.489 
4.263 
1,039 

s 151,532 

s 138,241 
1.259 

s 139.500 
s 12,032 

5,237 

Ac.quired loans (impa ired and non-impaired) arc initially recorded at the ir acquisition-date foi r values using 
Level 3 inputs. F'air values are based on a discounted cash tlow methodology that invol\res assump1ions and judgmen1s 
as to c rcdil risk, cxpc<:tcd life- time losses, environmental faclors, collateral values, d iscount rates, expected payments 
and expected pre payments . Specifically, 1he Company has prepared three separate loan fair value adju.stments that it 
believes a maricet participant might employ in estimating the entire fair value adjustment necessary under ASC 820-10 
for the acquired loan ponfolio. The three separate fair valuation methodologies employed are: (i) an interest rate loan fair 
value adjustment, (i i) a gcncrJ.I credit fair value adjustment. and (iii) a specific credit fair value adjus tmcnl for purchased 
c.re.dit impaired loans subject to ASC 310-30 provisions. The acquired loans were recorded at fair value at 1he acquisition 
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date without carryover o f L.BB's previously eswblished allowance for loan losses. T he fair value of the financial assets 
acquired included loans receivable with a principal ba lance, prior to fair value adjus1ments, of$124.5 million. 

The table below illustrates the fair value adjusunems made to the amonized cost basis to present. a fair value of 
the loans acquired: 

INJ/ars in TJu,u.,;.amls 

Gross principal balance 
Fa ir value adjustment on pools of non-credit impaired loans 
Fa ir value adjusunent on purchased credit impaired loans 
Fa ir value of acquired loans 

Al Man:h I, 2018 

$ 124,545 
(1,703) 
(1 , 168) 

121,674 

The credit adjustment on acquired impaired loans is derived in accordance with ASC 310-30 and represents the 
portion of the loan balances that have been deemed uncollcctible based on the Company's expectations of future cash 
nows for each respective loan: 

DuJ/a~ in Tholl.'illltd$ 

Contractually required plincipal and interest at acquisition 
Contractual cashflows not expected to be collected (non-accretable discount) 
Expected cash flows at acquisition 
Interest component o f expected cash flows 
Fa ir value for loans acquired under ASC 310-30 

Al Man:h I, 2018 

$ 2,469 
(922) 

1,547 
(246) 

1,301 

The fair value of savings and lnmsaction deposit accounts acquired from LBB provide value to the Company as 
a source of be.low market rate funds. The fair value o f the core deposit intangible was detenn ined based on a d iscounted 
cash flow analysis using a discount rate based oo the c.stimatcd cost of capital for a market panidpant. To calculate cash 
flows. lhe sum of deposit account servicing costs (net of deposit fee income) and interest expense on deposits were 
compared to the cost of alternative fonding sources available to the Company. T he expected cash nows of the deposit 
base includ4..--d estimated anrition rotes. The core deposit intangible was valued at SI .49 million or 2.04% o f core 
de posits. The core deposit intangible asset is being amortized on a double declining basis over 7 years. 

Direct costs related to the merger were accrued and expensed as incurred. There were no Libe.rty related merger 
expenses during 2019. During the year ended Dec.ember 31, 2018, the Company incurred Sl.4 million in Libeny 
merger-related expenses. 

Note 2J. Virgi_nia Part ners T ransaction 

On November 15, 2019, the Company completed its share exchange with Virginia Parnte~ Ban~ a Virgjnia 
chartered commercial bank. Partners shareholde rs received I. 7179 shares of the Company's common stock for each 
sbare of Partners common stock they owned as of the effeccive date of the share exchange. The aggregate consideration 
paid to Partners shareholders was S52.3 million. Additionally, $350 thousand was included as consideration for 
replacement stock option awards per the share exchange agreemenl and $2 thousand in cash in lieu o f fractional shares. 
The results o f Partners' operations arc included in the Company's consolidated s tatements o f income for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2019 for the period beginning November 15, 2019, the date o f the cHCctivcncss of the share exchange. 

The acquisition resulted in three new branches, an operations: center and administrative headquarters in 
Fredericksburg, Virginia, along with an additional branch office in La Plata, Maryland and a loan production office in 
Annapolis, Maryland. 

T he acquisit ion of Panners was accounced for using the acquisit ion method of accounting a nd, accordingly, 
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and consideration paid were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the 
acquisition dare. T he excess consideration paid over the foir value of net assets acquired has been reported as goodwill in 
the Company's consolidmed statements of financial condi1ion as of December 31. 2019. 
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T he assets acquired and liabil itics assumed in the-acquisition o f Partners were recorded at their estimated fa ir 
values based on manageme.nt's best estimates using information available at the date of the-acquisition and are subject to 
adjtL,;;tment for up to one year after the closing date of the. acquisition. The items most susceptible to adjustment are the 
credit fair value t1djustmcnts on loans, core deposit intangible und the dcfCrrcd income ht~ assets resulting from the 
acquisition. 

In conneclion with the acquisition, the consideration paid and the fo ir value of identifiable assels acquired and 
liabilities assumed as of the date of acquisition arc s ummarized in lhc following table; 

Dollars in Thousands 
Consideration paid: 

Cash 
Common stock issued in acquisition 

Stock op1ions issued in acquisition (replacement awards) 
Total consideration paid 
Assets acquired: 

Cash and cash equivalent,;; 
Investment securities 
Investments in correspondent bank stock 
Loans 
Premises and equipment 
Accrued interest receivable 
Core deposi1 imangible 
l)eferred iax asset 
Other asset,;; 

T oral assets acquired 
Liabilities assumed: 

Deposits 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities assumed 
Net assets acquired 
Noncon1rolling inlcrest in consolidated subsidiaries 
Goodwill recorded in acquisition 

Estimated Fair 
Value as. of 

November 15. 20 I 9 

2 
52,282 

350 
52,634 

6,743 
65,373 
3,670 

357,127 
6,969 
1,155 
2,650 
1,239 
9.242 

454,168 

348,552 
56408 

404,960 
49,208 

728 
4,154 

Acquired loans (impaired and non impaired) are ini1ial\y recorded at their acquisilion date fair values using 
Level 3 inputs. Fair vnlues are based on a discounted cash flow me1hodology that involves assumptions and judgments 
as to credit risk, expected life time losses, environmental factors, collateral values, discount rates, expected payments 
and expected prepayments. S pecifically, the Company has pre.pared three separate loan fair value adjusunents that it 
believes a market participant might employ in estimating the entire fai r value adjustment necessary under ASC 820 I 0 
for the acquired loan portfolio. The three separate fair valm1tion methodologies employed o.re: (i) an intcres.t rate loan fair 
value adjustment. ( i i) a general credit fai r value adjustment. and (iii) a specific credit fair value adjustment for purchased 
credit impaired loans subject to ASC 3 10 JO provisions. The acquired loans were. recorded al fair value-at the acquisition 
date \.\'lthout carryover of Panners' previously established allowance for loan losses. The. fair value of the- financial assets 
acquired included loans receivable with a principal balance, prior to fair value adjusunents. of$362.9 million. 

T he rable below illustrates the fa ir value adjustments made to the amortized cost basis to present a fair value of 
the loans acquired: 
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Dollars in Thousands 
Gross principal balance 
fair value adjustment on pools of non-credit impaired loans 
Fair value adjustment on pltr-Chascd c redit impaired loans 
Fair value of acquired loans 

At November IS, 2019 

S 362.916 
(4,990) 

(799) 
S 357,127 

The credit adjustment on acquired impaired loans is derived in accordance with ASC 3 10 30 and represcms the. 
portion of the loan balances that have been deemed uncollectible based on 1he Company's expectations of future cash 
flows for each respective loan: 

Dollars in Thousands 
Contractually requi.Tl..--d principal and imcrcst at acquisilion 
Con1ractual cashflows not expected 10 be collccl'cd (non-accrctablc discount) 
Expected c.a.sh flows at acquisition 
Interest component of expected cash flovts 
Fair value for loans acquired under ASC 310~30 

At November 15, 2019 
S 6.713 

(1,371) 
S,342 
(673) 

S 4 669 

The fair value of savings and transaction deposit accounts acquired from Partners provide value to the 
Company as n source of below markel rate funds. The fair value of 1he core deposit in1ang,iblc w·as dctennined based on 
a discounted cash 11ow analysis using n discount ra1c based on the estimated cos1 of capital for a markel participant. To 
calculate cash nows. the sum of deposi1 accoum servicing costs (net of deposi1 fee income) and interest expense on 
deposi1s were compared 10 the cosl of altemative fundi11g sources availoble to the Company. The expec1ed cash nows of 
the deposit base included es1imated attrition rates. The core deposit intangible was valued at S2. 7 million or 1.01% of 
total deposits . The core deposit intangible asset is being a monized on the sum of months method over 10 years. 

Direct coslS rclalcd 10 1he merger were accrued and expensed as incurred. During the year ended December J I . 
2019 aod 2018. the Company incurred Sl.9 million and S248 thousand. respectively in Panners rnerger•re ln1ed 
expenses. 

Note 22. Revenue Recognition 

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2014--09 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" 
(Topic 606) and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic 606. The implementation of the new standard did not have a 
material impacl on the measurement or recognition of revenue: as such, a cumulative effect adjuslmcnt to opening 
retained earnings was not deemed necessary. Results for rcponing periods beginning after January I , 2018 arc presented 
under Topic 606, while prior period amounls were not adj usted and continue to be reported in accordance with our 
his1ork: accounting under Topic 605. 

Topic 606 does not apply to revenue associated with financial instruments, including revenue from loans and 
securities. Topic 606 is applicable to noninlercst revenue streams such as deposit related fees, interchange fees and 
mcrchan1 income. However, the recognition o f these revenue streams did not change significantly upon adoption o f 
Topic 606. Subs1antially all of 1he Company's revenue is generated from contracts with customers:. Noninlerest revenue 
s1reams in-scope of Topic 606 are discussed below. 

Service Charges on Deposit Accounls 

Service charges on deposi1 accounts consist ofacc-0un1 analysis fees (i.e .. net fees eamcd oo analyzed business 
and public checking accounts), monthly service fees, c heck orders, and other deposit account related fees. The 
Company's performance obligation for account analysis fees a nd monthly service fees is generally satisfied, and the 
rela1cd revenue recognized, over the period in which the service is provided. 
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Check orders and 01her deposit account related fees arc largely transactional based. and therefore. 1hc 
Company's performance obligation is satisfied, and related revenue recognized, at a poinl in time. Paymenl for service 
charges on deposit acc.ounts is primarily received immediately or at the-end of the month 1hrough a direct charge to 
cus1omcrs· accounts. 

Mortgage Division Income 

Mortgage division income. whkh is included is noninteres1 income. consists of fees for loans originated by 
Delmar through an application process that a.re sen1 to a mongage broker. The loan application and underwriting 
processes are completed by other various financial institutions. Delmar receives a pre•negotiated fee at .settlement for 
initiating the loan origination. Delmar receives the fee and recognizes 1he income when the loan goes 10 seulement. 

Other Nonimcrcst Income 

01her noninterest income consists of: fees, exchange, olher service charges, safety deposit box rental fees, and 
other miscellaneous revenue s1reams. Pees and other service charges are primarily comprised of debit and credit card 
income, ATM fees, merchant services income. and 01hcr service charges. Debit and crcdi1 card income is primarily 
comprised of interchange fees earned whenever the Company's debit and credit cards are processed through card 
payment nerworks such as Visa. A TM fees arc primarily generated when a Company cardholder uses a non-Company 
ATM or H non-Company cardholdcr uses a Company ATM. Merchant services income mainly represents fees charged to 
merchants to process their debit and credit card tmnsactions. in addition to account management fees. 01her service 
charges include revenue from processing wire transfers. bill pay service. cashier's checks. and other services. The 
Company's performance obligation for fees, exchange-, and 01hcr service charges are largely satisfied, and related 
revenue recogni1..ed, when the services arc rendered or upon completion. Payme111 is typical ly received immediately or in 
the following month. Safe dcposil box rental fees arc charged to the customer on an annual basis and recognized upon 
n:,-ccipl of payment. 
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Chairman of the Board 
 

ROBERT C. WHEATLEY 
Keller Williams Commercial 

Associate Broker 

The Whayland Group, LLC 

Principal 



 

THE BANK OF DELMARVA 

DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS  
 

RON J. BOLTZ 
Governance Committee 

 

JOHN W. BREDA 
ALCO Committee 

Governance Committee 

Loan Committee 

Regulatory Compliance Committee 
 

LAURA DEELEY BREN 
Audit Committee 

 

DAVID C. DOANE 
Loan Committee 

 

HEIDI J.A. GILMORE, ESQUIRE 
Loan Committee 

 

MARK L. GRANGER 
Audit Committee, Chairman 

 

HENRY H. HANNA, III, CCIM, SIOR 
Loan Committee 

 

KENNETH R. LEHMAN 
 

JOSEPH A. MARESSA, JR., ESQUIRE 
Audit Committee 

Loan Committee 
 

JAMES A. TAMBURRO, ESQUIRE 
Governance Committee 

Loan Committee 
 

EDWARD M. THOMAS 
ALCO Committee 

Governance Committee, Chairman 
 

JEFFREY F. TURNER, Chairman of the Board 
Governance Committee 

Loan Committee 
 

ROBERT C. WHEATLEY 
Audit Committee 

Loan Committee, Chairman 

Regulatory Compliance Committee, Chairman 
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MONA D. ALBERTINE 
Jabberwocky Books 

President and Co-Founder 

 

LEWIS W. GRAVES, SR. 
Coldwell Banker, Carriage House Reality, Inc. 

Retired - Former President and Owner 

 

LLOYD B. HARRISON, III 
Virginia Partners Bank 

Maryland Partners Bank (A Division of Virginia Bank) 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

 

LUCY G. HARMAN 
P.C. Goodloe & Son, Inc. 

Retired - Former Owner 

 

JOHN A. JANNEY 
John A. Janney Builder, Inc. 

Owner 

Chairman of the Board 

 

WALLACE N. KING, SR. 
Virginia Partners Bank 

Maryland Partners Bank (A Division of Virginia Bank) 

Executive Vice President & Senior Loan Officer 

 

KENNETH R. LEHMAN 
Former Attorney 

Private Investor 

 

STEVEN R. MOTE 
Mote Management 

President 

 

GEORGE P. SNEAD 
Parrish Snead Franklin Simpson PLC 

Partner 

 

WILLIAM J. VAKOS, III 
W.J. Vakos Management Co. 

President 
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MARYLAND PARTNER BANK 
(A Division of Virginia Partners Bank) 

DIRECTORS 
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MONA D. ALBERTINE 
Audit and Compliance Committee, Chair 

Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee 
 

LEWIS W. GRAVES, SR. 
Risk Committee 

Directors Loan Committee 
 

LLOYD B. HARRISON, III 
Risk Committee, Chair 

Directors Loan Committee, Chair 
 

LUCY G. HARMAN 
Audit and Compliance Committee 

Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee, Chair 
 

JOHN A. JANNEY 
Compensation Committee 

Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee 

Directors Loan Committee 
 

WALLACE N. KING, SR. 
Directors Loan Committee 

 

KENNETH R. LEHMAN 
Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee 

 

STEVEN R. MOTE 
Directors Loan Committee 

Risk Committee 
 

GEORGE P. SNEAD 
Audit and Compliance Committee 

Compensation Committee, Char 
 

WILLIAM J. VAKOS, III 
Compensation Committee 

Risk Committee 

VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK 

MARYLAND PARTNER BANK 
(A Division of Virginia Partners Bank) 

DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBER 
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THE BANK OF DELMARVA EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 

President and Chief Executive Officer 
 

John W. Breda 

 

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 
 

Deborah S. Abbott  

 

Executive Vice President and Senior Lending Officer 
 

Carl L. Cottingham  

 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
 

Betsy J. Eicher, CPA 

 

Senior Vice President 
 

Lawrence L. Dernulc  

Roy J. Lewis 

S. Jeanne Robertson 
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THE BANK OF DELMARVA OFFICERS 

 

Regional Vice President 
 
 

James D. Barr 

 
Vice President 
 

John Q. Aukward, Jr. 

Karl S. Bystrak 

Casey L. Coco 

Jodi L. Close 

Karin A. D’Armi-Hunt 

Marcia L. Dayton 

Lisa L. Ellis 

Joseph F. Gordy, III 

Jay H. Gulbransen, CPA  

Angela A. Hill 

Stephanie L. Krause 

Sandy L. Nailor 

Staci M. Niblett 

Matthew P. Shaffer 

Jeanette S. Smith 

Michele U. Thomas 

Gray B. Warrington 

J. Paige Widdowson 

 
 

Assistant Vice President 
 

Scott Aaron 

Carol J. Adams 

Sonia B. Baker 

Geri P. Beigler 

June E. Betts 

Matthew  E. Bounds 

Ashley L. Clevenger 

Amy L. Downes 

Rena I. Friend 

Lori A. Graves 

Jamie L. Hovatter 

Crystal L. Hudson 

Douglas B. McKinney 

Ramona M. Mullinix 

Robin H. Parker 

Abby L. Parsons 

Scott J. Rukowicz 

Amy L. Senseny 

Nancy L. Shrieves 

Kelly R. Swagler 

John W. Thornton, III 

Kelsey Dickerson Tilghman 

Sara J. Wright 

 

Assistant Cashier 
 

Debora K. Bradley 

Kenneth W. Carey 

Kevin J. Fooks 

Mark B. Gosnell 

Dawn Litchford 

Christine J. Welsh 

Shelly B. Whaley 
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LIBERTY BELL BANK, A DIVISION OF THE BANK OF DELMARVA 

BRANCH OFFICES 

Evesham Office 

Joyce P. Stewart, Manager 

(856)830-1130 

145 North Maple Avenue 

Marlton, NJ 08053 

Moorestown Office 

Jill C. Spangler, Manager 

(856)802-0901 

227 West Camden Avenue 

Moorestown, NJ 08057 

Cherry Hill Office 

Vince A. Iannitti, Manager 

(856)489-8401 

2099 Route 70 East 

Cherry Hill, NJ 08003 

LIBERTY BELL BANK, A DIVISION OF   

THE BANK OF DELMARVA OFFICERS 
 

 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

 

John W. Breda 

 
New Jersey Market President 

 

John R. Herring  

 
Senior Vice President 

 

Kathleen Hiltner  

 
Vice President 

 

Kenneth E. Miller 

Stephen Gin 

 
Assistant Vice President 

 

Bruce Collins  

Vince A. Iannitti  

Maryann Massey 

Jill C. Spangler 

Joyce P. Stewart 
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THE BANK OF DELMARVA 

BRANCH OFFICES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delmar Office 

Lori A. Graves, Manager 

(410)896-9041 

9550 Ocean Highway 

Delmar, Maryland 21875 
 

North Salisbury Office 

Lisa L. Ellis, Manager 

(410)742-9401 

2727 North Salisbury Boulevard 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

East Salisbury Office 

Nancy L. Shrieves, Manager 

(410)543-9300 

241 Beaglin Park Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21804 
 

Eastern Shore Drive Office 

John Q. Aukward, Jr., Manager 

(410)548-1700 

921 Eastern Shore Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

Pecan Square Office 

Marcia L. Dayton, Manager 

(410)546-2100 

1206 Nanticoke Road 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

Cash Mgt./Remote Deposit Capture 

Karin D’ Armi - Hunt 

(410)548-1100 

2245 Northwood Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

Loan Production Office 

James D. Barr, Loan Officer 

(302)226-1960 

19264 Miller Road, Unit A 

Rehoboth Beach, Delaware 19971 

Seaford Office 

Robin H. Parker, Manager 

(302)629-2700 

910 Norman Eskridge Highway 

Seaford, Delaware 19973 
 

Laurel Office 

Amy L. Downes, Manager 

(302)875-5901 

200 East Market Street 

Laurel, Delaware 19956 
 

Dagsboro Office 

Crystal L. Hudson, Manager 

(302)732-3610 

28280 Clayton Street, Post Office Box 98 

Dagsboro, Delaware 19939 
 

Pelican Square Office 

June E. Betts, Manager 

(302)226-8900 

18572 Coastal Highway 

Rehoboth Beach, Delaware 19971 
 

North Ocean City Office 

Amy L. Senseny, Manager 

(410)250-5330 

12505 Coastal Highway 

Ocean City, Maryland 21842 
 

West Office City Office 

Kelly R. Swagler, Manager 

(410)213-1555 

12720 Ocean Gateway, Unit 4 

Ocean City, Maryland 21842 
 

Loan Department 

Casey L. Coco, Manager 

(410)548-1100 

2245 Northwood Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 



 

VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK 

MARYLAND PARTNER BANK 
(A Division of Virginia Partners Bank) 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 

President and Chief Executive Officer 
 

Lloyd B. Harrison, III 
 

Executive Vice President and Senior Lending Officer 

Wallace N. King, Sr.  
 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

J. Adam Sothen  
 

Senior Vice President 

Kevin A. Fastabend 

Kevin M. Hopun 

Robin J. Huddle 

Christopher P. Kelly 

William J. Kinnamon, III 

John R. Murray 

William J. Musseman 

Marc J. Ohler 

J.D. Zachry 
 

Vice President 
 

Beth A. Abbott  

Matthew J. Ayers 

Bruce E. Boley 

David A. Dammeyer, Jr. 

Christopher D. Ellington 

Carolyn Kline Johnson  

Heather S. Moger 

Kenton A. Sites 

Joan K. Sumner 
 

Assistant Vice President 
 

Christie M. Cooper 

Francesca G. Howard 

Mary K. Labrusciano 

Rebecca S. Sharp 

Gina M. Watson 

Mitzie D. Weymouth 

Mary L. Wyne 
 

Officer 

Cameron S. Branning 

James R. Jordan 

Ingrid P. Thomas 
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VIRGINIA PARTNERS BANK 

MARYLAND PARTNER BANK 
(A Division of Virginia Partners Bank) 

BRANCH OFFICES 
 

 

 
Main Office - Virginia Partners Bank 

Bruce E. Boley, Manager 

(540) 899-0005 

410 William Street 

Fredericksburg, VA 22401 

 
Salem Church Office - Virginia Partners Bank 

Rebecca S. Sharp, Manager 

(540) 899-3022 

4210 Plank Road 

Fredericksburg, VA 22407 

 
Cowan Office - Virginia Partners Bank 

Roxy D. Salazar, Manager 

(540) 370-0520 

2521 Cowan Boulevard 

Fredericksburg, VA 22401 

 
La Plata Office - Maryland Partners Bank 

Christie M. Cooper, Manager 

(240) 776-6204 

115 E. Charles Street 

La Plata, MD 20646 

 
Annapolis Loan Production Office - Maryland Partners Bank 

J.D. Zachry, Market Executive 

(240) 776-6110 

2661 Riva Road, Building 1000 

Annapolis, MD 21401 



 


